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A Rich Product Pipeline...

Sepracor Inc. is @ resegrch-based pharmeceutical company dedicated to treoting and

by

preventing human disease through the discovery, development, and commercialization of

innovative pharmeceutical products thot are directed toward serving unmet medical
needs. Sepracers drug development program has yielded en extensive portfolio of
phaormaceutical compounds including condidotes for the treatment of respiratory,

urolegy, end central nervous System disorders.

Pharmaceuticals on the Market or in Clinical Development

Compound Indication / Expected Indication Phase |  Phasell  Phase Il NDAReview Launched
p p l
Respiratory
| | J | |
XOPENEX® Inhalation Solution Asthma & COPD: Short-Acting Bronchodilator Lounched 1999
(levalbuteral HCI) ] l ‘
XOPENEX® Inhalation Solution Asthma: Short-Acting Bronchodilator Leuncied 2002
(pediatric indication) J |
SOLTARA™ (tecastemizole*) Allergy: Nonsedating Antihistamine , :
(R.R}-formoterol COFD: Long-Acting Bronchodilator
I I
XOPENEX® Metered-Dose Inhaler Asthma & COPD: Short-Acting Bronchodilator
(levalbuterol) J ‘
Central Nervous System (CNS)
[ [
ESTORRA™ (eszopiclone) Sleep Disorders :
{R}-sibutramine metabolite Depression :
(R)-sibutramine metabolite Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD)
SEP174559 Anxiety
Urology/Other
{S)-oxybutynin Urinary Incontinence .
(S)-amlodipine Hypertension 1
(S)-sibutramine metabolite Sexual Dysfunction |
Partnered Programs
. | [ l [ l
ALLEGRA® B%Aventis Allergy: Nonsedating Antihistamine leyrched 1998
(fexofenadine HCI™) | I I
CLARINEX® €5 Schering-Plough Allergy: Nonsedating Antihistamine leungied in US. 2006
(desloratadine) I l
XYZAL®] XUSAL™ KJQ — Allergy: Antibistamine Ganed I forome 200

: | l | l |

° On Mageh 7, 2002, Sepracer regsived & “mot approvelile” ketter for SOLTARA rand (eestemizelie. Sepracer e reguesicd @ meeting with e US: and) Brug Administraiion (FOA) b s
e Tegulremerts for reseluiton of e fsues identified by ihe FOA concerming (e New Drug Aupliciion (NEA)

“ Feofnadne preduet developed and mareted By Mot Maren Rovssel, Ine, ("HMRIT, qow Avertls, 2 ALLEGRA brand feelenetine Iwdrediieride, Seprecer e er peelignee iis
Feliied) petents werldhide (o HVIRL




of Patients

Sepracor 2001 Annual Report

t3

Sepracor selects for development compounds with the potential to offer

improvements over existing therapies with respect to efficacy, side-effect profile,

dosage forms, or in some cases, the opportunity for additional indications.

We are advancing several pharmaceutical candidates through clinical studies,

and we have established agreements with some of the world's most successful

pharmaceutical companies.
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To Qur Shareholders: Sepracor is evolving into

more than an innovative,

research-driven organization.
Through the successful
commercialization of
XOPENEX® and our robust
product pipeline, we are
emerging as a full-fledged
pharmaceutical company.

We are focusing drug

development primarily in
three fast-growing and promising therapeutic areas —
respiratory, urology and central nervous system disorders.
As we grow, we will seek to provide both primary care and
specialty markets with compounds that offer improvements
over existing therapies with respect to efficacy, side-effect
profiles or dosage forms.

Continued Success of XOPENEX brand levalbuterol HCI

At Sepracor, our commitment to commercializing our self-
developed products is reflected in the success of our asthma
therapy, XOPENEX® brand levalbuterol HCI. Launched in

May 1999, XOPENEX inhalation solution is indicated for the
treatment or prevention of bronchospasm in patients 6 years
of age and older with reversible obstructive airway disease,
such as asthma. XOPENEX is commercialized in the U.S.
through our sales force.

XOPENEX ended 2001 having achieved a market share of
21.3 percent for total unit-dose vial beta-agonist prescriptions,
and 23.8 percent share of the market for new unit-dose vial
beta-agonist prescriptions, XOPENEX has continued to show
gains in the hospital sector as well, with 13.7 percent share
in the unit-dose vial market as of December 2001. At year
end 2001, XOPENEX was being prescribed by nearly 30,000
healthcare professionals in the U.S,, including primary care
physicians, pulmonologists, pediatricians and allergists, with
the highest share of XOPENEX prescriptions coming from
allergists and pediatricians.

Many factors contribute to the commercial success of
XOPENEX. The combination of independent study data
presented at medical meetings, clinical effectiveness, positive
experiences reported by both patients and physicians, and
Phase IV data presented at medical conferences, has enabled
XOPENEX to continue to gain new prescribers.

Primary Care Expansion
We have several late-stage compounds in clinical development

that address large and growing primary care indications. We
began the expansion of our primary care sales force in 2001.
Having begun the year with approximately 150 sales
professionals, Sepracor closed the year with approximately

450 sales professionals who detail XOPENEX inhalation solution
to primary care physicians, allergists, pulmonologists and
pediatricians in the U.S.

The expanded sales force will increase the reach and frequency
of XOPENEX sales calls. Additional incremental sales force
increases are expected to mirror anticipated U.S. Food and
Drug Administration (FDA) approval timing and future
pharmaceutical product launches.

Robust Late-Stage Pipeline
Assuming favorable results from ongoing studies, Sepracor

anticipates submitting later in 2002, a New Drug Application
(NDAJ to the FDA for ESTORRA™ brand eszopiclone for the
treatment of insomnia. In 2001, we advanced three compounds
into Phase Il studies, which include XOPENEX in a metered-
dose inhaler (MD!) formulation, (R,R)-formoterol for the
treatment of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, and
(S)-oxybutynin for the treatment of overactive bladder. In the
first quarter of 2002, we advanced (S)-amlodipine into a
Phase I study for the treatment of hypertension. During 2002,
we intend to direct essentially all of our clinical research
resources toward the advancement of these programs and,
pending a further discussion with the FDA, SOLTARA™.

XOPENEX® Strong Market Share Growth
(Weekly Retail Prescriptions)
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Units in millions

XOPENEX® Hospital Quarterly Growth
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Sepracor's NDA for SOLTARA brand tecastemizole received a
“not approvable” letter from the FDA on March 7, 2002. The
FDA deemed the application to be insufficient for an approval
action at that time. We are designing additional studies to
address the issues identified by the FDA concerning the NDA.
There can be no assurance whether or when SOLTARA will

be approved.

Qut-Licensing Agreements

We have established out-licensing agreements with some of the
worid's leading pharmaceutical companies. Sepracor's agreements
include the following:

O Sepracor earns royalties from Aventis where Sepracor holds
patents relating to fexofenadine (including the U.S., Japan,
Europe, Canada and Australia) for sales of ALLEGRA® brand
fexofenadine HCl, a nonsedating antihistamine for the
treatment of allergic rhinitis.

O In September 2001, UCB announced that European Union
Member States granted a positive opinion for levocetirizine,
for the treatment of symptoms of seasonal atlergic rhinitis,
perennial allergic rhinitis and chronic idiopathic urticaria, or
hives of unknown cause, in patients 6 years of age and older.
Levocetirizine is marketed in Europe under the brand names
XYZAL® and XUSAL™. Sepracor continues to earn royalties on
product sales in Germany and Switzerland and expects to
earn royalties on sales in additional countries upon faunch.

0 On December 21, 2001, CLARINEX® (desloratadine) 5 mg
Tablets received marketing clearance from the FDA for the
treatment of seasonal allergic rhinitis in adults and children

12 years of age and older. On January 14, 2002, Schering-
Plough announced that CLARINEX Tablets were available by
prescription in pharmacies nationwide. Also in early 2002,
Schering received FDA approval to expand CLARINEX labeling

to include chronic idiopathic urticaria and allergic rhinitis, which
includes both seasonal and perennial allergic rhinitis. Sepracor
expects to earn royalties on sales of CLARINEX in the U.S.

O Sepracor continues to work with Johnson & Johnson to
assess ticalopride {(+)-norcisapride) as a development
candidate. (See Management's Discussion on page 20.)

Drug Discovery

We believe that our near-term growth will come from
commercialization of our late-stage pipeline. However, we
have been broadening our research efforts to include new
drug discovery and development, which is beginning to vield
results. We have identified lead compounds in the therapeutic
areas that match our planned sales and marketing strengths,
such as treatments for central nervous system disorders and
pain management.

Continued Financial Strength

During the fourth quarter 2001, Sepracor announced the
private placement of $500 million of 5.75% Convertible
Subordinated Notes with Auto-Conversion Provision, due 2006.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, Sepracor’s consolidated
revenues were $152.1 million, of which revenues from pharma-
ceutical product sales were approximately $122.2 million.

At the end of 2001, we had approximately $904.4 million in

consolidated cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities.

| would like to congratulate Sepracor's shareholders, partners
and employees on the progress that we are making in the
development and commercialization of our pharmaceutical
pipeline. | look forward to reporting on Sepracor’s continuing
progress throughout the coming year.

Sincerely,

L b

Timothy J. Barberich
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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PRIMARY CARE physicians write the majority of prescriptions
for each therapeutic area that our candidates address.

Sepracor is a fully integrated research-based pharmaceutical
company dedicated to treating and preventing human
disease through the discovery, development and commercial-
ization of innovative pharmaceutical products that are
directed toward serving unmet medical needs. Our drug
development program has yielded an extensive portfolio

of pharmaceutical compounds including candidates for the
treatment of respiratory, urology and central nervous

system disorders.

The unifying characteristic of Sepracor’s pipeline is that

all of the compounds in late-stage clinical development
address large and growing indications that are served princi-
pally by primary care physicians (PCPs). For each of the
therapeutic areas that our late-stage compounds address,

50 percent or more of the prescriptions are written by PCPs.
Fifty-eight percent of antihistamine prescriptions are

written by PCPs. PCPs also write approximately 50 percent
of prescriptions for urinary incontinence and insomnia
medications, while 71 percent of short-acting bronchodilator

prescriptions are written by PCPs and pediatricians.

We anticipate that the focus of our commercialization effort
will be to target the highest-prescribing physicians in each
specialty. With the increased reach of Sepracor's expanded
sales force, we expect that our sales professionals will be able
to detail our products to all deciles of primary care prescribers,

and to other specialists within each therapeutic category.

As of January 2002, Sepracor had approximately 450 sales
professionals who detail XOPENEX® brand levalbuterol HC
inhalation solution to primary care physicians, allergists,
pulmonologists and pediatricians in the U.S. This expanded
sales force has the breadth to optimize XOPENEX sales calls
to healthcare professionals and increase brand recognition.
Additional incremental sales force increases will be designed
to reflect development and anticipated U.S. Food and

Drug Administration approval timing of our pipeline of

pharmaceutical candidates.

Sepracor investigators have presented clinical data at numer-
ous scientific and medical meetings. Clinical information,

including favarable pharmacoeconomic data, was presented

for levalbuterol at the 2001 meetings of both the American










Academy of Allergy, Asthma and Immunology (AAAAI) and
the American Thoracic Society (ATS). Clinical abstracts and

posters of studies conducted on tecastemizole and leval-
buterol were presented at the American College of Allergy,
Asthma and Immunology (ACAAI) in November 2001. At the
ACAAI, levalbuterol efficacy studies and initial safety data
on Sepracor's studies of tecastemizole were presented.
Additional abstracts and posters assessing the efficacy of
tecastemizole and levalbuterol were presented at the March
2002 meeting of the AAAAI

Targeting the Primary Care Prescription Market
(Percent in Category Prescribed by Primary Care Physicians)

KOPENER® (pstirme and COPD) 7%
(RR}-FORVICTEROL (COPD) GELOR
SOLTARA® (allergle dhtalids) BE%
(S)-ORYBUTYNIN (incontinenee) 509%
ESTORRA” (slees disereers) |
* Includes pediatricians U.S. market

' Insgmnia treatments {non-benzodiazepine hypnotics)

SOURCE: IMS Health Worldwide Estimates 2001

Our success in commercializing our first self-developed
and self-marketed product, XOPENEX, combined with

the expansion of our sales force and emerging data on
our pharmaceutical candidates, sets the stage for us to

effectively commercialize our late-stage pipeline.

Alain A. Chaoui, M.D., is a primary care physician in
Lynnfield, Massachusetts.

Sepracor Worldwide Target Markets by Therapeutic Area

Respiratory Approx. $10.5 Billion CNS Approx. $18.3 Billion Urology Approx. $2.8 Billion

[ Prescription Antihistamines  $6.8B [J Depression $15.9B O Erectile Dysfunction $1.6B

O Asthma and COPD (B~agonists) $3.7B [ Sleep Disorders $1.4B' [ Incontinence $1.28
[0 APHD $1.08B




Sepracor 2001 Annual Report

XOPENEX; our first self-developed and self-marketed
product, is a commercial success.

In January 2002, Sepracor received approval from the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration (FDA) to market XOPENEX
inhalation solution at dosage strengths of 0.31 mg and
0.63 mg for the treatment or prevention of bronchospasm
in patients 6 to 11 years old. Included in the Supplemental
New Drug Application (sNDA) submitted to the FDA in
March 2001, were the results of a multicenter, randomized,
double-blind, placebo-controlled pediatric study. In one of
the largest pediatric asthma studies ever conducted for a
beta-agonist (n=338), we evaluated the safety and efficacy
of levalbuterol inhalation solution dosage strengths of
0.31 mg and 0.63 mg, and racemic albuterol inhalation
solution dosage strengths of 1.25 mg and 2.5 mg, versus
placebo, in patients with mild to moderate asthma. The
Journal of Allergy and Clinical Immunology published the

results in December 2001.

The pediatric approval expands labeling for XOPENEX to
include the treatment or prevention of bronchospasm in
patients 6 years of age and older who suffer from reversible

obstructive airway disease, such as that which occurs in

patients with asthma. XOPENEX is now available in an
inhalation solution for use in a nebulizer in 0.31 mg, 0.63 mg,

and 1.25 mg dosage strengths.

Also in early 2002, Sepracor and 3M Drug Delivery Systems
Division announced initiation of a scale-up and manufac-
turing collaboration for a XOPENEX hydrofluoroalkane (HFA)
metered-dose inhaler (MDI). The collaboration will combine
Sepracor's short-acting beta-agonist, XOPENEX, and 3M's
expertise in manufacturing MDls, the device most commonly
used by patients for the treatment of asthma and chronic
obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD), using HFA technology.
Sepracor is currently conducting large-scale clinical studies
for levalbuterol in an HFA MDI in children, adolescents

and adults.

Asthma is a chronic lung disease caused by inflammation of
the lower airways resulting in episodes of airflow obstruction.
According to the American Lung Association, approximately
26 million Americans have been diagnosed with asthma in
their lifetime. It is the most common childhood iliness and

affects 8.6 million children in the U.S. under the age of 18,




COPD is characterized by airflow obstruction due to chronic
bronchitis andfor emphysema. While there is no cure, patients
suffering from COPD may benefit from bronchodilator thera-
pies which can improve lung function, decrease symptoms,
help increase mucus clearance and reduce the number of
exacerbations. Approximately 16 million people in the US.
suffer from COPD!

Bronchadilators are the primary treatment for bronchospasm
associated with acute and chronic asthma attacks and are
necessary complements to other asthma therapies such as
steroids. Bronchodilators are also the primary therapy for
patients suffering from COPD.

Symptoms of asthma vary and can include coughing, chest
tightness, wheezing and shortness of breath. Episodes of
asthma symptoms (also referred to as asthma attacks,
flare-ups or exacerbations) occur when airways narrow,

making it difficult and sometimes impossible to breathe.

U.S. Short-Acting Bronchodilator Market
Potential at Branded Prices

1.5
$1.1B $1.28
w 1 ! —
=
S
B a
E=
& 05— - -
0
Nebule Market® MDI Market™

*Assumes XOPENEX® branded price based on number of doses of unit-dose
vials (UDV) and multidose combined, and XOPENEX utilization (three times
a day vs. four times a day)

**Assumes PROVENTIL® HFA Branded Unit AWP Price of $33.88
SOURCE: IMS DDD 1/01-12/01; IMS NPA 1/01-12/01

' "Economic Burden of Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease: Impact of
New Treatment Options," Pharmacoeconomics, 2001.

8.6 million children under the age of 18 have been diagnosed
with asthma.

U.S. Shert-Acting Bronchodilator Market
(Prescriptions by Specialty)

(] Primary Care ] Pediatricians  [_] Pulmonologists
7 Allergists (] Other

SOURCE: IMS-NPA for FY2001
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SOLTARA; Sepracor’s nonsedating antihistamine,
is in the review process with the FDA.

Sepracor's New Drug Application (NDA) for SOLTARA brand
tecastemizale received a "not approvable” letter from the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) on March 7, 2002.
The FDA deemed the application to be insufficient for an
approval action at that time. We are designing additional
studies to address the issues identified by the FDA
concerning the NDA. There can be no assurance whether
or when SOLTARA will be approved.

The NDA for SOLTARA was submitted to the FDA in March
2001 and contained data from seven large-scale allergic
rhinitis studies, more than 30 smaller clinical trials, and
200 preclinical studies. Sepracor’s clinical studies included
patients with seasonal and perennial allergic rhinitis.

In these studies, over 3,700 subjects were treated with
SOLTARA at doses ranging from 2 mg to 300 mg.

If SOLTARA is approved, we expect to pursue SOLTARA

franchise line extensions, which include a SOLTARA-

pseudoephedrine combination product, a SOLTARA
rapidly dissolving tablet, and a syrup formulation. More
than 5,000 subjects have been exposed to SOLTARA in all

phases of development.

fn March 2002, clinical results for SOLTARA were presented
at the annual meeting of the American Academy of
Allergy, Asthma and Immunology (AAAAI). The abstracts
and posters summarized results of studies designed to
determine onset of action, duration of relief and clinical
performance of SOLTARA versus placebo in symptom
reduction. These abstracts were published in The Journal
of Allergy and Clinical Immunology. In November 2001,
clinical results for SOLTARA were presented at the
American College of Allergy, Asthma & Immunology
(ACAAI). These abstracts and posters summarized results
from Sepracor studies designed to show the drug's

safety profile versus placebo.










Allergic rhinitis is an allergen-induced inflammation of
the membranes lining the nose. Allergic rhinitis includes
perennial allergic rhinitis, which is an allergic response to
everyday triggers, as well as seasonal allergic rhinitis, which
is an allergic reaction that occurs due to wind-borne pollen

exposure. Common symptoms of allergic rhinitis include:

O sneezing, often accompanied by a runny or clogged nose;
O coughing and postnasal drip;

O itchy eyes, nose and throat; and

O red, burning or watery eyes.

According to the American Lung Association, approximately
40 million Americans suffer from some form of allergic
reaction to tree pollen, grass pollen, mold spores, dust mites

and pet dander.

U.S. Prescription Nonsedating
Antihistamine Market

2001 Total Revenues 2001 Total Prescriptions
Approx. $5.7B Approx. 90M
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SOURCE: IMS Health RPP for FY2001 SOURCE: IMS-NPA for FY2001

Allergic rhinitis affects more than 40 million Americans.

] Primary Care [] Pediatricians ] Allergists

U.S. Antihistamine Market
(Prescriptions by Specialty)

[} Ear, Nose, Throat [] Other

SOURCE: IMS-NPA for FY2001
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In our studies, ESTORRA" successfully achieved the
targeted endpoints of hypnotic efficacy, safety, and

it was well tolerated.

ESTORRA brand eszopiclone is Sepracor's pharmaceutical
candidate for the treatment of transient and chronic
insomnia. According to the National Sleep Foundation,
sleep disorders affect approximately 50 million people in
the U.S. Insomnia symptoms can include difficulty falling
asleep, awakening frequently during the night, awakening

too early in the morning, or awakening feeling unrefreshed.

By the end of the fourth quarter 2001, Sepracor had
completed 22 clinical trials, including three pivotal studies,
for ESTORRA for the treatment of sleep disorders. In these
trials, more than 2,000 subjects were treated with ESTORRA.
In these studies, the drug was successful in achieving the

targeted endpoints of hypnotic efficacy and safety.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, Sepracor had a pre-NDA
(New Drug Application) meeting with the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration (FDA). In response to issues raised by
the FDA regarding completeness of the NDA, Sepracor is
conducting additional preclinical studies designed to

provide sufficient data to support the data package that
Sepracor licensed from Rhone-Poulenc Rorer SA (RPR, now
Aventis) in 1999. Sepracor intends to submit information
from RPR's preclinical, clinical and post-marketing surveil-
lance data package relating to zopiclone, its isomers, and
metabolites, in addition to data from Sepracor’s own
studies, as part of the NDA package to the FDA. Assuming
favorable results from the ongoing studies, we anticipate
submitting the NDA to the FDA in 2002.

Insomnia can be classified as follows:

O Transient — typically lasts for a few days and is related
to identifiable trig‘gers such as illness or changes in
environmental temperatures or surroundings, sleep and
wake schedule problems such as those due to jet lag

and medication side effects;

O Chronic — occurs at least three times a week and lasts
for a month or more. It can be a subjective experience

of inadequate duration or quality of sleep persisting far

at least one month;










O Short-term — lasting up to three weeks; and
O Intermittent — recurrence of transient insomnia.

Physicians classify 48 percent of insomnia patients as having
chronic insomnia, 28 percent are classified as short-term
insomniacs, and 24 percent are identified as transient
insomniacs. According to physicians, 30 percent of patients
claim difficulty falling asleep, 32 percent have trouble
falling asleep combined with nocturnal awakenings, 22
percent experience only nocturnal awakenings, 12 percent
have a problem with early morning awakenings, and

4 percent have other insomnia symptoms.”

The U.S. market for prescription sleep products exceeded
$1 billion in 2001 and grew at a rate of approximately

30 percent over the preceding year, according to IMS
Health information. Approximately 50 percent of total
insomnia treatment prescriptions are written by primary
care physicians, 13 percent by psychiatrists, and 37 percent

by specialists or others.

U.S. Prescription Sleep Agent Market

2001 Total Revenues 2001 Total Prescriptions
Approx. $1.2B Approx. 29M
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SOURCE: IMS Health RPP for FY2001 SOURCE: IMS-NPA for FY2001

' SOURCE: Market Measures: Treatment of Insomnia IV, Feb. 2000.

Approximately 50 million Americans suffer from sleep disorders.

U.S. Sleep Agent Market
(Prescriptions by Specialty)

[ Primary Care [ Psychiatrists [ Cardiologists [_] Other

SOURCE: IMS-NPA for FY2001
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In our studies (R,R)-FORMOTEROL exhibited 2 rapid onset
of action comparable to the short-acting bronchodilator,
VENTOLIN; as well as a duration of action up to 24 hours.

(R,R)-Formoterol inhalation solution is our candidate for
the treatment of bronchoconstriction caused by chronic
obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD). Clinical studies
indicate that (R,R)-formoterol has the potential to provide
rapid onset of relief as well as a long duration of action.
In September 2001, (R,R)-formoterol inhalation solution
advanced into Phase Ill studies for the treatment of

bronchospasm in patients with obstructive airway disease.

In our Phase Il program for obstructive airway disease,
including asthma and COPD, (R,R)-formoterol exhibited
a rapid onset of action comparable to the short-acting
bronchodilator, VENTOLIN, as well as a duration of action
of up to 24 hours in all studies. In a Phase Il 340-patient
multi-dose asthma trial, (R,R)-formoterol at a range

of doses tested, significantly improved lung function
(p<0.001 versus placebo). These changes, measured as FEV,
(a measurement of the amount of air forcefully exhaled
in one second; a test of lung function) increases from
baseline, ranged from 24 percent to 27 percent. In these

studies, (R,R)-formoterol had a duration of action of up

to 24 hours with a side-effect profile comparable to other
beta-agonists. Currently marketed long-acting beta-agonists
require twice-a-day dosing and are not available in an

inhalation solution formulation.

COPD includes both chronic bronchitis and emphysema,
conditions which worsen over time. Chronic bronchitis is
characterized by excessive airway mucus secretion, a narrow-
ing of the airways and a persistent cough. Patients suffering
from emphysema have a permanent destruction of their
alveoli, the small air sacs of the lungs, as well as collapse or
narrowing of small air passages called bronchioles, making
breathing difficult. Emphysema typically develops in older
individuals with a long smoking history.

Bronchodilators have the potential to improve lung function,
decrease symptoms, help increase mucus clearance, and
reduce the number of exacerbations in patients with

COPD. The U.S. market for long-acting bronchodilators

was approximately $1.2 billion in 2001, according to IMS

Health information.

U.S. Long-Acting Bronchoditator Market®

2001 Total Revenues
Approx. $1.2B

2001 Total Prescriptions
Approx. 11.4M
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SOURCE: IMS Health RPP for FY2001 SOURCE: IMS-NPA for FY2001

* Includes Advair™










(S)-OXYBUTYNIN, in a sustained-release formulation, could

provide relief for symptoms of urinary incontinence with
reduced side effects, such as dry mouth.

We are studying (S)-oxybutynin for the treatment of over-
active bladder. Our clinical studies suggest that (S)-oxybutynin
may provide relief for symptoms of frequency and urge
urinary incontinence with reduced side effects, such as

dry mouth.

In June 2001, we began a Phase Il study for (S)-oxybutynin
in a sustained-release formulation for the treatment of over-
active bladder. The study is expected to include approximately
850 patients at 70 sites throughout the United States.

In a previousty completed, large-scale Phase IIB study,
(S)-oxybutynin administered three times a day (TID) at 120 mg
resulted in significant improvements in daily micturition
symptoms, and an improved tolerability profile (specifically
dry mouth) compared with immediate release DITROPAN® at

5 mg TID. (S)-Oxybutynin in a sustained-release formulation
was designed to provide a more constant level of drug therapy
and is being developed to permit once-a-day dosing with less

peak to trough variability and an improved therapeutic profile.

U.S. Urinary Incontinence Market

2001 Total Revenues 2001 Total Prescriptions

Approx. $800M Approx. 13M
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According to the American Foundation of Urological Disease,
urinary incontinence affects more than 17 million people in
the United States, with the majority of sufferers being older
adults and women. Urinary incontinence can be characterized
as either urge incontinence or stress incontinence. Urge
incontinence typically increases in prevalence as people age
and is caused by an urgent desire to urinate accompanied by
an inability to control the bladder,

Stress incontinence most commonly affects women and

is caused when muscles supporting the bladder become weak-
ened. These weakened muscles are unable to prevent leakage
when pressure is applied to the bladder due to coughing,

sneezing, laughing, walking or other routine physical activities.

U.S. sales of prescription stress and urge urinary incontinence
products were approaching $1 billion in 2001, and grew at a

rate of 42 percent over the previous year, according to IMS

Health information.
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clinical development.

(S)-Amlodipine

We have initiated a Phase Il clinical study of (S)-amlodipine,

an isomer of amlodipine, for the treatment of hypertension.
Amlodipine is the leading calcium antagonist used for the
treatment of hypertension and angina. Preclinical studies have
indicated that (S)-amlodipine could be effective for the treatment
of hypertension and may provide significantly less peripheral

edema, which is swelling of the legs and ankles.

Middle-aged Americans face a 90 percent chance of developing
high blood pressure at some time during their lives, according to
a new study supported by the National Heart, Lung, and Blood

Institute (NHLBI), which appeared in the February 27, 2002 issue

of the Journal of the American Medical Association.!

Blood pressure is a measure of the force of blood within blood
vessels. It is recorded as two numbers: the systolic (the force of
the blood as the heart beats) over the diastolic (the force of the
blood as the heart relaxes between beats). If either or both are
high — 140/90 mm HG or above — then a person is considered to
suffer from hypertension. Uncontrolled high blood pressure
increases the risk of a heart attack, congestive heart failure, stroke

or even kidney failure.

' This study was based on data from NHLBI's landmark Framingham Heart Study (FHS). The National
Institute of Neurological Disorders and Strake also contributed support to the research.

We have several candidates in early stage (PHASES | AND 1)

(S)-Sibutramine Metabolite

The (S)-sibutramine metabolite is in Phase Il studies for the
treatment of sexual dysfunction. Preclinical studies have shown
the (S)-sibutramine metabolite to be a potent dopamine and
norepinephrine reuptake inhibitor with the potential to improve
erectile and ejaculatory dysfunction. We plaﬁ to study the
(S)-sibutramine metabolite for the treatment of both male and

female sexual dysfunction.

Sexual dysfunction in men and women may be caused by
underlying physical conditions or may stem from psychological
causes. Physical conditions may include diabetes, heart disease,
neurotogical disorders, pelvic surgery or trauma, side effects of
medications, chronic disease like kidney or liver failure, hormonal

imbalances, alcoholism and drug abuse, or heavy smoking.

Psychological triggers that may contribute to sexual
dysfunction are stress or anxiety, marital discord, depression

or previous traumatic sexual experience.

(R)-Sibutramine Metabolite
Large-scale studies of the (R)-sibutramine metabolite continue.

In preclinical studies, the (R)-sibutramine metabolite was shown

U.S. ADHD Market
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U.S. Antidepressant® Market
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* SSRIs only

to be a potent serotonin, norepinephrine and dopamine reuptake
inhibitor. We believe that this unigue triple mechanism of action
may provide a broader spectrum of therapy than currently

marketed antidepressants.

In our initial Phase | studies, the compound was bioavailable and
well tolerated. We are studying the (R)-sibutramine metabolite for
the treatment of depression and attention deficit hyperactivity
disorder {ADHD).

Depression affects nearly 19 million adult Americans. Symptoms
can include a persistent sad mood, loss of interest or pleasure in
activities that were once enjoyed, significant change in appetite
or body weight, difficulty sleeping or oversleeping, loss of energy,
feelings of worthlessness or inappropriate guilt, difficulty
concentrating and recurrent thoughts of death or suicide.

ADHD is a condition that affects both adults and children.
People with ADHD commonly exhibit behavior that is marked

by inattention, hyperactivity or impulsivity. These behaviors must
be present for a prolonged period of time and must adversely
affect at least two areas of a person's life, such as school, home,

work or social settings, in order to qualify as a diagnosis.

SEP174559
We have initiated a Phase | clinical trial of SEP174559, which
may be useful for the treatment of acute and chronic anxiety.

The compound has the potential for a rapid onset of action with
less sedation than presently available anxiolytics for acute anxiety.
SEP174559 was shown in preclinical studies to have anxiolytic
effect at doses far below levels that cause sedation. Anxiety
disorders are thought to be the result of a chemical imbalance

in the brain.

Anxiety disorders can include panic disorder, phobias, generalized
anxiety disorder or post-traumatic stress disorder. Anxiety disorders
frequently occur in conjunction with other serious ilinesses such as
depression and eating disorders. People suffering from generalized
anxiety disorder usually worry excessively, are unable to relax and

often suffer from insomnia.

According to a study by the Anxiety Disorders Association of
America (ADAA), anxiety disorders cost the U.S. over $42 billion
each year, more than half of which is associated with the repeated
use of healthcare services due to misinterpretation of anxiety
symptoms that mimic physical iliness.'

"From "The Economic Burden of Anxiety Disorders,” a study commissioned by the

ADAA and based on data gathered by the Association and published in The
Journal of Clinical Psychiatry.
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Our drug discovery program is focused on addressing unmet

medical needs.

To complement our pipeline of single-isomer and active-
metabolite pharmaceutical candidates, we continue our
research in discovering novel compounds for pain manage-
ment and treatment of central nervous system {CNS)
disorders. In this program, we are seeking to discover novel
compounds unrelated to existing commercial compounds
and which have the potential to provide benefits over

existing treatments or address unmet medical needs.

Sepracor has entered into agreements that allow us access
to novel molecular targets. For both known biological and
new genomic-identified drug targets, relevant assays are
designed in high-throughput screening formats. We use
combinatorial chemistry technigues to produce libraries of
novel compounds for screening. When a fead is discovered,
focused libraries are designed and synthesized utilizing
directed combinatorial techniques. By using this technology,
we have identified a number of promising lead compounds
applicable to the treatment of pain and CNS disorders,
such as depression, attention deficit hyperactivity disorder,

anxiety and schizophrenia.

We are currently conducting research on a number of

new drug candidates. Our early-stage lead compounds
include SEP167864, which may be a potent analgesic and
which has shown in preclinical models less respiratory and
central nervous system depression, constipation, and nausea
than leading opiate analgesic products. We are studying
the compound in parenteral and transdermal formulations
for use in treating acute and chronic severe pain. These
analgesic product candidates may provide more potent pain
treatments for cancer patients and may be better tolerated.
They may also offer pharmacoeconomic advantages by
reducing the length of time patients spend in the hospital

after surgery.

According to the American Chronic Pain Association, chronic
pain is defined as pain that continues for at least a month
beyond a normal recovery period, and can be continuous or
sporadic. Chronic pain is estimated to affect approximately

86 million Americans.
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Sepraccer Inc. Selected Financial Data

Year Ended December 31,

{in thousands, except share and per share data) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues:
Product sales $ 1257248 $ 57,160 $ 16,383 $ 155 $ 7
Rovyalties 25,663 2,573 2,000 243 204
Collaborative research and development - 3573 2,390 4,761 -
License fees and other 1,184 21,939 1,886 5,050 1,874
Total revenues 152,095 85,245 22,659 10,209 2,195
Costs and expenses:
Cost of revenue 15,904 14,334 4919 575 541
Research and development 231,278 170,759 122,400 61,797 41,230
Selling, general and administrative and patent costs 131,386 98,398 65,336 30,123 12,609
Total costs and expenses 378,568 283,491 192,655 92,495 54,380
Loss from operations (226,473} (198,246} (169,996} (82,286) (52,185)
Other income (expense):
Interest income 25,669 41,919 21,896 1319 5,639
[nterest expense (47,793) (47,760) (33,078 (16,969} (5,976)
Equity in investee gains (losses} (1,601) 3,501 (3,246) (7,482) (2,755)
Other @ 997 (7.051) 272 (60) 3N
Gain on sale of affiliate stock @ 23,034 - - - 30,069
Net loss before minority interest (226,167) (207,637) (184,152) (93,606) (24.877)
Minarity interest in subsidiary 2,152 3,620 1,438 534 428
Net foss from continuing operations (224,015) (204,017) (182,714) (93,072) (24,449)

Discontinued operations:
Loss from discontinued operations

(net of minority interest) @ - - (345) (21) (1,674)
Net foss $ (224,019) $ (204,017) $ (183,059) $ (93,283) $ (26,123)
Net loss applicable to common shares © $ (224,015) $(204,017) $(183,059) $ (93.433) $ (26,723}
Basic and diluted net loss per common share from
continuing operations $ (2.89) $ (280 $  (277) $ (161 $ (044)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share from
discontinued operations $ - $ - $  (0.00) $  (0.01) $  (0.04)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share $ {2.89) $ (280) $ (277 $ (162 $  (0.48)
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss
per common share:
Basic and diluted 77,534 72,757 66,049 57,826 55,198
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and short and long-term investments $ 904,389 $ 634,479 $ 335,823 $ 499,597 $ 92,560
Total assets 1,093,531 750,958 406,635 549,260 126,388
Long-term debt 1,260,817 853,916 490,61 491,910 83,736
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) $ (313,702) $(214,674) $ (155,705) $ 4428 $ 12,368

(1) Represents Sepracor's portion of BioSphere Medical, Inc. losses in 2001, Sepracor's portion of HemaSure Inc. losses and a gain of $5,000 resulting from the release of
a HemaSure loan guarantee in 2000 as a result of HemaSure Inc’s repayment in full of the loan, and HemaSure Inc. and Versicor Inc. losses in 1999. Includes the
write-off of a HemaSure line of credit guarantee in 1998. See Footnote C-Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Includes $7,497 in expenses relating to prepaid interest and fees for the conversion of 6.25% convertible subordinated debentures in 2000.

{3} Represents Sepracor's gain on the sale of 2,600,000 shares of BioSphere Medical inc. comman stock in 2001 and Sepracor’s gain on the sale of ChiRex Inc. in 1997.

{4) Discontinued operations relate to BioSphere Medical, Inc. See Footnote |-Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(5) Includes $150 and $600 in preferred stock dividends in 1998 and 1997, respectively.
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report to Stockholders contains forward-locking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 concerning the Company's business, opera-
tions and financial condition, including statements with respect
to the safety, efficacy and potential benefits of the Company's
products under development, expectations with respect to
development and commercialization of the Company's product
candidates, the timing of the submission, acceptance and approval
of regulatory filings, the scope of patent protection with respect
to these product candidates and the Company's products and
information with respect to the other plans and strategies for the
Company's business and the business of the subsidiaries. All state-
ments other than statements of historical facts included in this
Annual Report to Stockholders regarding the Company's strategy,
future operations, timetables for product testing, requlatory
approvals and commercialization, financial position, costs,
prospects, plans and objectives of management are forward-
looking statements. When used in this Annual Report to
Stockholders, the words “expect,” "anticipate,” “intend," "plan,"
"believe,” "seek,” "estimate,” and similar expressions are intended
to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-
looking statements contain these identifying words. Because these
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, actual
results could differ materially from those expressed or implied by
these forward-looking statements for a number of important
reasons, including those discussed under “Factors Affecting Future
Operating Results,” "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere

in this Annual Report to Stockholders.

You should read these statements carefully because they discuss
the Company's expectations about its future performance, contain
projections of the Company's future operating results or its future
financial condition, or state other “forward-looking” information.
You should be aware that the occurrence of any of the events
described in these risk factors and elsewhere in this Annual Report
to Stockholders could substantially harm the Company's business,
results of operations and financial condition and that upon the
occurrence of any of these events, the trading price of Sepracor's
common stock could decline.

Sepracor cannot guarantee any future results, levels of activity,
performance or achievements. The forward-looking statements
contained in this Annual Report to Stockholders represent the
Company's expectations as of the date of this Annual Report

to Stockholders and should not be relied upon as representing

its expectations as of any other date. Subsequent events and
developments wilt cause the Company's expectations to change.
However, while the Company may elect to update these forward-
looking statements, it specifically disclaims any intention or
obligation to do so, even if its expectations change.

Overview

Sepracor Inc. is a research-based pharmaceutical company
dedicated to treating and preventing human disease through

the discovery, development and commercialization of innovative
pharmaceutical compounds that are directed toward serving
unmet medical needs. Sepracor's drug development program has
yielded an extensive portfolio of pharmaceutical compounds,
including candidates for the treatment of respiratory, urology and
central nervous system disorders. Sepracor's corporate headguarters
are located in Marlborough, Massachusetts.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Sepracor Inc. ("Sepracor” or the "Company”) and its majority

and wholly-owned subsidiaries, including BioSphere Medical, Inc.
(“BioSphere") (a consolidated subsidiary through July 2, 2001) and
Sepracor Canada Limited. The consolidated financial statements
also include equity ownership in Sepracor's affiliate, HemaSure Inc.
("HemaSure"}, and an investment in Versicor Inc. {*Versicor").

BioSphere is an endovascular medical device company, pioneering
the use of patented and proprietary bioengineered microspheres
as a new class of embolotherapy devices. Sepracor owned
approximately 64% of BioSphere at December 31, 1999. On
February 4, 2000, BioSphere completed a $5,900,000 private
placement of common stock and warrants. As a result of this
transaction, Sepracor recorded a net gain of approximately
$2,771,000 through additional paid-in capital and Sepracor's
ownership of BioSphere decreased to approximately 59%. On
July 31, 2000, BioSphere sold approximately $13,000,000 of its
common stock in a private equity placement. Of this amount,
Sepracor purchased approximately $5,000,000 of BioSphere
common stock. As a result of the transaction, Sepracor recorded

a net gain of approximately $1,702,000 through additional paid-in
capital, and the Company's ownership in BioSphere decreased to
approximately 56%. At December 31, 2000, Sepracer's ownership
in BioSphere was approximately 55%.

In July 2001, Sepracor sold 2,000,000 shares of BioSphere common
stock held by it in an underwritten public offering in which
BioSphere also sold 2,000,000 shares of its common stock at a
price to the public of $11.00 per share. In August 2001, Sepracor
sold an additional 600,000 shares of BioSphere common stock held
by it at $11.00 per share pursuant to exercise of the underwriter's
over-allotment option. Sepracor received net proceeds, after offer-
ing costs, from the combined sales of approximately $26,526,000
and recognized a gain of approximately $23,034,000 in 2001.
Sepracor recorded approximately $5,590,000 through additional
paid-in capital as its gain on BioSphere's sale of 2,000,000 shares
of BioSphere common stock. As a result of the public offering,
Sepracor's ownership in BioSphere has been reduced to approxi-
mately 25% as of December 31, 2001. Effective July 3, 2001,
Sepracor no longer consalidates the results of BioSphere and

now records its investment in BioSphere under the equity method.
Sepracor recorded $1,601,000 as its share of BioSphere losses for
the period ended December 31, 2001.

HemaSure had been applying its proprietary filtration technology
to develop products to increase the safety of blood collection and
transfusion. At December 31, 1999, Sepracor owned approximately
27% of the outstanding shares of HemaSure common stock. In
February 1999, the Company entered into an agreement with
HemaSure pursuant to which Sepracor invested $2,000,000 in
exchange for 1,333,334 shares of HemaSure common stock and
for warrants to purchase approximately 667,000 of additional
shares of HemaSure common stock. In October 1999, HemaSure
completed a private placement financing which resulted in
Sepracor recording a gain of $820,000 through additional paid-in
capital. On March 3, 2000, HemaSure completed a $28,000,000
private placement of common stock. As a result of this transaction,
Sepracor's ownership of HemaSure decreased to approximately
2206 and Sepracor recorded a gain of approximately $1,417,000
through additional paid-in capital. The Company also had a
$5,000,000 liability at December 31, 1999, relating to a guarantee
of a line of credit for HemaSure. In September 2000, HemaSure
repaid the $5,000,000 line of credit, and as a result, Sepracor
recorded a $5,000,000 equity in investee gain and removed the
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corresponding liability for the loan guarantee. Sepracor accounts
for its investment in HemaSure using the equity method of
accounting. At December 31, 20071 and 2000, Sepracor’s ownership
in HemaSure was approximately 23% and 22%, respectively and
its investment in HemaSure was recorded at zero,

In February 2001, HemaSure signed an asset purchase agreement
with Whatman plc. Under the terms of the agreement, Whatman
agreed to purchase HemaSure's assets, except for cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities of HemaSure, subject to
certain exceptions as defined in the agreement. On May 29, 2001,
HemaSure completed the sale to Whatman Bioscience Inc., a
Massachusetts corporation and a subsidiary of Whatman ple,
Following the sale, HemaSure changed its corporate name to
HMSR, inc.

Iin November 2001, HMSR, Inc. announced that it had signed

a definitive agreement to merge with Point Therapeutics, Inc.
Following the merger, HMSR's current stockholders will own
approximately 23% of the combined company. HMSR's stock-
holders voted to approve the merger at a stockholder's meeting
heid in March 2002.

Versicor develops novel drug candidates principally for the treat-
ment of infectious diseases. From December 10, 1997 through
April 1999, Sepracor recorded Versicor's results based on the equity
method of accounting. As a result of various Versicor private equity
offerings in 1999, Sepracor recorded a gain through additional
paid-in capital of $1,077,000 in 1999 and began accounting for
its investment under the cost method of accounting in April 1998,
In 1999, Sepracor paid $1,000,000 to Versicor under a promissory
note agreement, which was later converted into Versicor preferred
stock. In August 2000, Versicor completed an initial public offering
of its common stock. As of December 31, 2000, Sepracor owned
approximately 8% of Versicor's outstanding common stock.
Sepracor considers its investment in Versicor as an available-for-
sale security and as such has marked to market its investment at
the December 31, 2000 market price of $8.625 per share, which
resulted in the recording of an unrealized gain of $10,688,000 as

a separate component of stockholders' equity in 2000.

As of December 31, 2001, Sepracor owns 1,809,143 shares, or
approximately 8%, of Versicor's outstanding commaon stock.
Sepracor also has warrants to purchase an additional 76,250
shares of Versicor common stock at $5.00 per share, which expire
in December 2002. Sepracor recognized $1,252,000 as other
income in 2001 for changes in the valuation of the warrants at
December 31, 2001. Sepracor has marked to market its investment
in Versicor at the December 31, 2001 market price of $20.25 per
share, which resulted in the recording of an unrealized gain of
$22,889,000 as a separate component of stockholders' equity

in 2001.

In May 1999, Sepracor introduced XOPENEX® brand Levalbuterol
HCI, a single isomer of the bronchodilator albuterol. XOPENEX is
the first pharmaceutical product developed and commercialized
by Sepracor.

During 2002, the Company expects to incur increasing operating
expenses primarily due to expansion of research and development
activities relating to development of the Company's portfolio of
pharmaceuticals and late stage drug candidates. Sales and market-
ing expenses are expected to increase in connection with a larger
sales force. As a result, the Company expects to incur operating
losses for at least the next two years.

Revenue-related agreements

Tecastemizole. Effective January 1998, Sepracor and Janssen
Pharmaceutica, N.V., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Johnson &
Johnson ("Janssen"), entered into an agreement (the “Tecastemizole
Agreement”; formerly referred to as the "Norastemizole Agreement”),
relating to the development and marketing of tecastemizole (for-
merly norastemizole), a third generation nonsedating antihistamine.
Under the terms of the Tecastemizole Agreement, the companies
agreed to jointly fund the development of tecastemizole, and
Sepracor granted to Janssen an option to acquire certain rights
regarding the product in the United States and abroad. In May 1999,
Sepracor announced that Johnson & Johnson elected not to exercise
its option to co-promote tecastemizole under the Tecastemizole
Agreement. Sepracor continued to fund clinical development and
marketing of the drug and submitted a NDA to the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration (the "FDA") for SOLTARA brand tecastemizole

in March 2001. Under the terms of the Tecastemizole Agreement,
Sepracor has worldwide rights to make, use and sell prescription
tecastemizole products under all Johnson & Johnson intellectual
property rights relating to tecastemizole, including the right to
reference Johnson & Johnson's data for astemizole, in exchange

for royalty payments on sales of tecastemizole. Sepracor anticipates
selling SOLTARA, if approved, through its own expanded sales force.

Fexofenadine. In September 1999, Hoechst Marion Roussel Inc.
(now Aventis) and Sepracor settled patent issues with respect

to fexofenadine, marketed by Aventis as ALLEGRA®, and

amended their existing agreement (as so amended, the "Aventis
Fexofenadine Agreement”). Under the terms of the U.S. Aventis
Fexofenadine Agreement, Aventis received all rights to Sepracor's
patents with respect to fexofenadine and obtained an exclusive
license to various Sepracor U.S. patent applications related to
fexofenadine. In October 1999, upon effectiveness of the amended
Aventis Fexofenadine Agreement, Sepracor recognized license fee
revenue of $1,875,000 from a milestone payment that had been
previously deferred. Sepracor has earned royalties on fexofenadine
sales in the United States since February 2001. Under the terms
of a separate ex-U.S. Aventis Fexofenadine Agreement, Aventis
obtained an exclusive license to Sepracor's patents related to
fexofenadine, that had been the subject of litigation in Europe,
as well as various other patent oppositions between the two
companies outside the United States. Sepracor has been entitled
to royalties on fexofenadine product sales since March 1, 1999

in countries where Sepracor has patents related to fexofenadine.
The Company recorded $25,379,000, $2,495,000 and $1,746,000
of royalty revenues under the Aventis Fexofenadine Agreement in
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Levocetirizine. In June 1999, Sepracor entered into a licensing
agreement with UCB Farchim SA, an affiliate of UCB ("UCB"),
relating to levocetirizine, an isomer of cetirizine, which is marketed
by UCB as ZYRTEC® (the "UCB Agreement”) for the treatment of
allergic rhinitis. Under the terms of the UCB Agreement, Sepracor
has exclusively licensed to UCB all of Sepracor's issued patents

and pending patent applications relating to levocetirizine in all
countries, except the United States and Japan. Sepracor is entitled
to receive royalties under the UCB Agreement upon first product
sales and royalties will escalate upon achievement of sales volume
milestones. In September 2001, UCB announced that European
Union Member States granted a positive opinion for levocetirizine, a
single isomer of ZYRTEC, for the treatment of symptoms of seasonal
allergic rhinitis (SAR), perennial allergic rhinitis (PAR} and chronic
idiopathic urticaria (CIU), or hives of unknown cause, in adults and
children aged 6 years and older. UCB has marketed levocetirizine
under the brand names XUSAL™ and XYZAL® in Germany since
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February 2001, and in 4 other European countries since the fourth
quarter of 2001. UCB has received regulatory approval in 9 other
countries where Sepracor expects to earn royalties upon launch

in 2002.

Desloratadine. In December 1997, Sepracor licensed to Schering
Plough Corporation (*Schering") exclusive worldwide rights to
Sepracor's patents covering desloratadine (the "DCL Agreement"),
an active metabolite of loratadine, which is used as an antihista-
mine. In 1998, Schering paid Sepracor an initial license fee of
$5,000,000. Under the terms of the DCL Agreement, Sepracor is
entitled to receive royslties on desloratadine sales, beginning at
product taunch. Royalties will escalate over time upon achieve-
ment of sales volume and other milestones. On January 19, 2001,
Schering received an approvable letter for desloratadine from
the FDA, which indicated that the product could be approved
pending final approval by the FDA. On February 15, 2001,
Schering announced that the FDA had issued reports citing
deficiencies concerning Schering's compliance with current Good
Manufacturing Processes, or GMPs, and that the FDA had advised
Schering that GMP deficiencies must be resolved prior to the FDA
granting approval of desloratadine. In December 2001, Schering
announced that CLARINEX® (desloratadine) 5mg tablets had
received marketing clearance from the FDA and Schering
commercially launched CLARINEX in 2002.

Eszopiclone. in October 1999, Sepracor entered into an agreement
with Rhone-Poulenc Rorer SA (now Aventis) under which Sepracor
exclusively licensed Aventis' preclinical, clinical and post-marketing
surveillance data package relating to zopiclone, its isomers and
metabolites, to develop, make, use and sell eszopiclone in the
United States (the "Aventis Eszopiclone Agreement”). Under the
Aventis Eszopiclone Agreement, Aventis assigned all U.S. patent
applications relating to zopiclone to Sepracor, and Aventis
retained the right under the licensed data package to manufacture
(S)-zopiclone in the U.S. for non-U.S. markets. In addition, Sepracor
paid a $5,000,000 license fee to Aventis in 1999 and will pay a
royalty to Aventis on eszopiclone product sales in the US,, if any.
Sepracor recognized expense of $1,000,000 in 2000 based on the
initiation of Phase !l clinical trials of eszopiclone and may be
required to pay additional milestone payments to Aventis.

(R)-Fluoxetine. In December 1998, Sepracor entered into an
agreement with Eli Lilly and Company (“Lilly") under which
Sepracor granted to Lilly exclusive worldwide rights to Sepracor's
patents covering (R)-fluoxetine, 2 modified form of an active
ingredient found in fluoxetine, marketed by Lilly as PROZAC®
(the "Lilly Agreement”). In April 2000, following completion of
the Federal Trade Commission review of the Lilly Agreement, the
Company received an initial milestone payment and license fee of
$20,000,000, which was recorded as license fee revenue in 2000.
The Company also recorded $3,573,000 of collaborative research
and development revenue in 2000 related to previous costs
incurred in the development of (R)-fluoxetine under the Lilly
Agreement. In October 2000, the Company was notified by Lilly
that Lilly had terminated the exclusive license agreement covering
(R)-fluoxetine. In accordance with the Lilly Agreement, Lilly has
returned the existing scientific data on the project to Sepracor.

Given the extended development timetable and an assessment of
the competitive environment, Sepracor has elected not to pursue
development of (R)-fluoxetine at this time.

Ticalopride. In July 1998, Sepracor entered into a license agree-
ment with Janssen (the “Ticalopride Agreement”; formerly referred
to as the "Norcisapride Agreement”) giving Janssen exclusive
worldwide rights to Sepracor's patents covering ticalopride

((+)-norcisapride), an isomer of the active metabolite of Janssen's
PROPULSID®, Under the terms of the Ticalopride Agreement,
Sepracor has exclusively licensed to Janssen rights to develop and
market the ticalopride product worldwide. Under the Ticalopride
Agreement, Janssen has agreed to pay Sepracor royalties on
ticalopride sales, if any, beginning at product launch in those
countries where Sepracor has issued patents covering Janssen's
approved indications. Under the terms of the Ticalopride Agreement,
the royalty rate to be paid to Sepracor will escalate upon the
achievement of sales volume milestones. In April 2001, the Company
was notified by Janssen that clinical investigators were informed
that two Phase Il trials to evaluate the efficacy and safety of
ticalopride in subjects with symptoms of GERD, or gastroparesis,
were being suspended pending further analysis of a small number
of adverse events reported in GERD and diabetic patients. Sepracor
continues to work with Johnson & Johnson to assess the data from
the suspended Phase [1 trials of ticalopride.

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2001 compared to 2000

Product sales were $125,248,000 in 2001 as compared with
$57,160,000 in 2000, an increase of 119%. Sales of XOPENEX,
which Sepracor commercially introduced in May 1999, accounted
for approximately 98% of 2001 product sales and 96% of 2000
product sales. The increase in product sales in 2001 as compared
with 2000 is due primarily to increased unit volume sales

of XOPENEX.

Rovalties were $25,663,000 in 2001 as compared with $2,573,000
in 2000. The increase in 2001 as compared with 2000 is primarily
due to increased royalties earned on sales of ALLEGRA in 2001,
under the Aventis Fexofenadine Agreement in 2001. Sepracor began
earning royalties on commercial sales of ALLEGRA in the United
States during February 2001, in Japan during November 2000 and
in several other countries from 1999 to present.

License fees and other revenues were $1,184,000 in 2001 as
compared with $21,939,000 in 2000. License fee revenue in
2000 was comprised of a $20,000,000 milestone and license
fee payment recognized under the Lilly Agreement. Under the
Lilly Agreement, Sepracor licensed to Lilly its patents covering
(R)-fluoxetine. Other revenues represent revenues of BioSphere
other than product revenues recognized by BioSphere in
connection with its core EmboSphere Microsphere business.

Collaborative research and development revenues were $0 in 2001
as compared with $3,573,000 in 2000. Collaborative research and
development revenues in 2000 were comprised of fees recognized
under the Lilly Agreement.

Cost of products sold, as a percentage of product sales, was 12% in
2001 compared with 20% in 2000. The decrease in cost of products
sold as a percentage of product sales in 2001 as compared with
2000 was primarily due to lower XOPENEX manufacturing costs

on a per unit basis due primarily to an increased number of units
having been produced in 2001, as compared to 2000.

Cost of license fees and ather revenue was $493,000 in 2001 as
compared with $3,056,000 in 2000. The cost of license fee revenue
in 2000 was $2,000,000, which represents sublicense fees owed by
us under a license agreement with Mclean Hospital pertaining to
patents licensed by us to Lilly under the Lilly Agreement.

Research and development expenses were $231,278,000 in 2001
as compared with $170,759,000 in 2000, an increase of 35%.

The increase in 2001 as compared with 2000 is primarily due to
increased spending on preclinical and clinical studies in Sepracor's
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pharmaceutical programs, including (1) the initiation of new
clinical studies for SOLTARA brand tecastemizole, and a NDA
submission to the FDA for tecastemizole, which was submitted in
March 2001, (2) NDA preparation costs and Phase IlI clinical study
costs relating to ESTORRA brand eszopiclone, (3) the initiation of
Phase Il clinical studies for (S)-oxybutynin and the compietion
of Phase {l clinical studies for (S)-oxybutynin, (4) the initiation of
a Phase Il clinical study for (R,R)-formoterol and (5) the expenses
related to several clinical trials for levalbuterol and new formula-
tions of XOPENEX and the completion of a supplemental New Drug
Application (an "sNDA") for a pediatric formulation of XOPENEX,
which was submitted to the FDA in March 2001,

Drug development and approval in the US. is a multi-step process
regulated by the FDA. The process begins with the filing of an IND,
which, if successful, allows opportunity for clinical study of the
potential new drug. Clinical development typically involves three
phases of study: Phase |, Il and IIl. The most significant costs in
clinical development are in the Phase Ill clinical trials as they tend
to be the longest and largest studies in the drug development
process. Following successful completion of Phase Il clinical trials,
an NDA must be filed with, and accepted by, the FDA, and the FDA
must apptove the NDA, prior to commercialization of the drug.
Sepracor currently has four potential products in Phase Il clinical
studies and one NDA recently reviewed, but not approved, by the
FDA. The successful development of the Company's product candi-
dates is highly uncertain. An estimation of product completion
dates and completion costs can vary significantly for each product
candidate and are difficult to predict. The lengthy process of seek-
ing FDA approvals, and the subsequent compliance with applicable
statutes and regulations, require the expenditure of substantial
resources. Any failure by the Company to obtain, or any delay in
obtaining, regulatory approvals could materially adversely affect
the Company's business. The Company cannot assure you that

any approval required by the FDA will be obtained on a timely
basis, if at all.

For additional discussion of the risks and uncertainties associated
with completing development of potential product candidates,
see "Factors Affecting Future Operating Results."

Below is a summary of Sepracor's product candidates and the
related stages of development for each product candidate in elinical
development. The "Estimate of Completion of Phase" column con-
tains forward-looking statements regarding timing of completion
of product development phases. The actual timing of completion
phases could differ materially from the estimates provided in the
table. The table is sorted by highest to fowest spending amounts

in 2001, and the five product candidates listed accounted for
approximately 90% of the Company's direct project research and
development spending in 2001,

Estimate of
Product Phase of  Completion
Candidate Indication Development of Phase
ESTORRA Sleep disorders Phase Il 2002
(eszopiclone)
SOLTARA Respiratory-Allergies  NDA 2003*
(tecastemizole)
S-Oxybutynin Urinary incontinence  Phase (il 2003
RR-Formoterol  Respiratory-Asthma  Phase Il 2003
XOPENEX-MDI  Respiratory-Asthma  Phase Ili 2003

*SOLTARA received a "not-approvable” letter from the FDA in
March 2002. We do not expect the SOLTARA NDA to receive
FDA approval, if at all, before mid-2003.

Selling, marketing and distribution expenses were $111,654,000 in
2001 as compared with $77,410,000 in 2000, an increase of 44%.
The increase in 2001 as compared with 2000 is principally due to
additional salary and other payroll-related costs resulting from

an increase in sales and marketing personnel, costs related to
contracting with a third party contract sales organization,
marketing, promotion and advertising costs related to XOPENEX,
and increased marketing costs in preparation for an anticipated
SOLTARA brand tecastemizole product launch.

General and administrative and patent costs were $19,732,000

in 2001 as compared with $20,988,000 in 2000, a decrease of

6%. The decrease in 2001 as compared with 2000 is primarily the
result of the consolidation of only six months of BioSphere costs
in 2001 compared to twelve months in 2000. In 2001, Sepracor
sold 2,600,000 shares of BioSphere common stock, which reduced
Sepracor's ownership in BioSphere to approximately 25%. Sepracor
now records its investment in BioSphere under the equity method
effective July 3, 2001.

Interest income was $25,669,000 in 2001 as compared with
$41,919,000 in 2000. The decrease in 2001 as compared with 2000
is due to lower average cash and short and long-term investment
balances available for investment and a decrease in the interest
rates earned on investments in 2001.

Interest expense was $47,793,000 in 2001 as compared with
$47,760,000 in 2000. The slight increase in 2001 as compared
with 2000 is due primarily to interest on the $500,000,000 of
5.75% convertible subordinated notes that Sepracor issued in
December 2001, partially offset by the conversion of $92,858,000
in principal amount of 6.25% convertible subordinated debentures
in February 2001.

Gain on sale of BioSphere stock was $23,034,000 in 2001 as com-
pared with $0 in 2000. This gain represents Sepracor's net gain on
Sepracor's sale of 2,600,000 shares of BioSphere common stock as
part of a public offering by BioSphere in July and August 2001.

Equity in investee gains (losses) were ($1,601,000) in 2001 as
compared with $3,501,000 in 2000. The equity in investee loss

in 2001 represents Sepracor's portion of BioSphere losses for 2001,
In 2000, the net equity in investee gain consists of Sepracor's por-
tion of the net loss of HemaSure of ($1,499,000}, offset by a gain
of $5,000,000 from the release of a loan guarantee for HemaSure.

Net other income (expense} was $397,000 in 2001 as compared
with ($7,051,000) in 2000. Other income in 2001 primarily repre-
sents income of $1,252,000 recognized on the increased valuation
of Versicor warrants being recorded as a derivative. Other expense
in 2000 primarily represents inducements and other costs of
$7,497,000 from the conversion of $96,424,000 in principal
amount of Sepracor's 6.25% convertible subordinated debentures.

Minority interest in subsidiaries (net of discontinued operations)
resulted in a reduction of consolidated net loss of $2,152,000 in
2001 as compared with $3,620,000 in 2000. The decrease in
minority interest is due to Sepracor's sale of 2,600,000 shares of
BioSphere common stock, which resulted in a reduction of its
ownership in BioSphere from approximately 55% to 25% as of
December 31, 2001. Sepracor no longer consolidates BioSphere
and now records its investment in BioSphere under the equity
method, effective July 3, 2001.
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Year Ended December 31, 2000 compared to 1999

Product sales were $57,160,000 in 2000 as compared with
$16,383,000 in 1999, an increase of 249%. Sales of XOPENEX,
which Sepracor commercially introduced in May 1999, accounted
for approximately 96% of 2000 product sales as compared with
86% of 1999 product sales. The increase in product sales in 2000 as
compared with 1999 is due primarily to increased unit volume sales
of XOPENEX.

Rovalties were $2,573,000 in 2000 as compared with $2,000,000 in
1999. The increase in 2000 as compared with 1999 is primarily due
to increased royalties earned on sales of ALLEGRA in 2000 under
the Aventis Fexofenadine Agreement.

License fees and other revenues were $21,939,000 in 2000 as com-
pared with $1,886,000 in 1999. The increase in 2000 as compared
with 1999 is primarily due to 2 $20,000,000 milestone and license
fee payment recognized under the Lilly Agreement in 2000. Other
revenues represent revenues of BioSphere other than product
revenues recognized by BioSphere in connection with its core
EmboSphere Microsphere business.

Collaborative research and development revenues were $3,573,000
in 2000 as compared with $2,390,000 in 1999. The increase in 2000
as compared with 1999 is due to collaborative research and devel-
opment revenue recognized in 2000 under the Lilly Agreement.
Collaborative research and development revenues in 1999 were
comprised of fees recognized under the Tecastemizole Agreement.

Cost of products sold, as a percentage of product sales, was 20%

in 2000 as compared with 29% in 1999. The decrease in cost of
products sold as a percentage of product sales in 2000 as compared
with 1999 is due primarily to an increase in sales of XOPENEX
pharmaceutical products as a percentage of total product sales,
which have a [ower cost as a percentage of product sales, as
compared to non-pharmaceutical product sales. Pharmaceutical
products represent primarily XOPENEX. Non-pharmaceutical
products represent BioSphere's products, including BioSphere's
EmboSphere Microsphere line of medical devices. Pharmaceutical
product sales represented approximately 96% of total product sales
in 2000 as compared with approximately 86% of total product
sales in 1999. Additionally, the cost of non-pharmaceutical product
sales as a percentage of non-pharmaceutical product sales declined
significantly in 2000 as BioSphere began to increase sales of its
higher margin EmboSphere Microspheres.

Cost of license fee and other revenue was $3,056,000 in 2000 as
compared with $108,000 in 1999. The cost of license fee revenue
in 2000 was $2,000,000, which represents sublicense fees owed by
us under a license agreement with Mclean Hospita!l pertaining to
patents licensed by us to Lilly under the Lilly Agreement.

Research and development expenses were $170,759,000 in 2000
as compared with $122,400,000 in 1999, an increase of 40%.
The increase in 2000 as compared with 1999 is primarily due to
increased spending on preclinical and clinical studies in Sepracor's
pharmaceutical programs, including (1) the initiation of 15 new
studies for tecastemizole and preparation efforts of an NDA for
submission to the FDA for tecastemizole, which was submitted in
March 2001, (2) the initiation of 17 new studies for eszopiclone,
formerly (S)-zopiclone, including two Phase Ili studies, (3) the
completion of a major phase I1b/lll study for (S)-oxybutynin,

(4) the completion of a Phase Il study for (R,R)-formoterol and
(5) the expenses related to several trials for levalbuterol and

new formulations of XOPENEX. In 2000, the Company initiated
several other preclinical and clinical studies and submitted an

Investigational New Drug application (“IND") for the (S)-sibutramine
metabolite for the treatment of sexual dysfunction.

See the discussion relating to research and development expenses
for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to 2000. The
research and development spending in 2000 and 1999 was
concentrated on the same product candidates described in the
2001 discussion.

Selling, marketing and distribution costs were $77,410,000 in 2000
as compared with $48,211,000 in 1999, an increase of 61%. The
increase in 2000 as compared with 1999 is principally due to
increased salary and other payroll related costs resulting from an
increase in sales and marketing personnel, costs resulting from
contracting with two third party contract sales organizations, and
marketing, promotion and advertising costs related to XOPENEX.

General and administrative and patent costs were $20,988,000 in
2000 as compared with $17,125,000 in 1999, an increase of 23%.
The increase in 2000 as compared with 1999 is primarily due to
$1,381,000 of additional amortization of deferred financing
costs, $345,000 of additional insurance costs and $1,081,000 of
additional BioSphere amortization of goodwill and stock-based
compensation costs in 2000.

Interest income was $41,919,000 in 2000 as compared with
$21,896,000 in 1999. The increase in 2000 as compared with 1999
is due to larger average cash and short and long-term investment
balances available for investment primarily as a result of the sate
of $460,000,000 of 5% convertible subordinated debentures in
February 2000.

Interest expense was $47,760,000 in 2000 as compared with
$33,078,000 in 1999. The increase in 2000 as compared with 1999
is due primarily to interest on the $460,000,000 of 5% convertible
subordinated debentures issued in February 2000.

Equity in investee gains (losses) were $3,501,000 in 2000 as
compared with ($3,246,000} in 1999, In 2000, the net gain in
equity of investees consists of the Company's portion of the net
loss of HemaSure of ($1,499,000) offset by a gain of $5,000,000
from the release of a loan guarantee for HemaSure. In 1999, the
net loss in equity of investees consists of the Company's portion
of the net loss of HemaSure of ($2,737,000) and the Company's
portion of the net loss of Versicor of {$509,000).

Net other income (expense) was ($7,051,000) in 2000 as compared
with $272,000 in 1999. Other expense in 2000 is primarily the
result of inducements and other costs of $7,497,000 from the
conversion of $96,424,000 in principal amount of Sepracor's 6.25%
convertible subordinated debentures.

Minority interest in subsidiaries (net of discontinued operations)
resulted in a reduction of consolidated net loss of $3,620,000 in
2000 as compared with $1,438,000 in 1999. The increase in 2000
as compared with 1999 is due to increased losses of BioSphere and
an increase in the Company's minority ownership of BioSphere to
450% in 2000 as compared with 36% in 1999.

Other

Critical Accounting Policies

In December 2001, the Securities and Exchange Commission, or
SEC, requested that all registrants discuss their most “critical
accounting policies” in management's discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operations. The SEC indicated
that a “critical accounting policy” is one which is both important to




the portrayal of the company's financial condition and results and
requires management's most difficult, subjective or complex
judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about
the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. While our
significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note B
to our consolidated financial statements included in this report,
we believe the following accounting policies to be critical:

Revenue Recognition: Sepracor recognizes revenue from product
sales when title to product and associated risk of loss has passed
to the customer, and collectability is reasonably assured. All
revenues from product sales are recorded net of applicable
allowances for returns, rebates and other applicable discounts
and allowances.

License fees and other revenue include non-refundable upfront
license fees, milestones, and ather revenue. Non-refundable
upfront license fees are recorded as revenue over the rejated
performance period or at such time when there are no remaining
performance obligations. Milestones are recorded as revenue
when achieved and only if there are no remaining performance
obligations and the fees are non-refundable. Other revenue
includes revenues recognized by BioSphere unrelated to its core
EmboSphere Microsphere business.

Sepracor records collaborative research and development revenue
from research and development contracts over the term of the
applicable contract, as it incurs costs related to the contract.

Royalty Revenue Recognition: Royalty revenue is recognized
based upon estimates of sales in licensed territories in the period
in which the sales occur. These estimates are derived from infor-
mation from the company paying the royalty when possible, or
from historical data and third party prescription data. Changes in
market conditions, such as the introduction of competitive prod-
ucts, can lead to significant deviations from historical patterns and
therefore cause estimates to be inaccurate. When estimates differ
from actual results, the difference is recognized in the following
quarter, provided the difference is not material to the results of
either quarter. If the difference was considered material, it would
be adjusted in the quarter in which the discrepancy occurred.

Rebate and Return Reserves: Certain product sales qualify for
rebates from standard list pricing due to government sponsored
programs or other contractual agreements. The Company also
allows for return of its product for up to one year after product
expiration. Reserves for product returns and rebates are derived
through an analysis of historical experience updated for changes
in facts and circumstances as appropriate and by utilizing reports
obtained from external, independent sources. If government
contracts change materially, the associated reserves estimated
for those programs can change significantly. Estimates of reserves
for returns are impacted by the extended return cycle, and by
other factors such as introduction of a new competitive product,
or other change in market conditions leading to a change in
historical return patterns.

Patents, Intangible Assets and Other Assets: Major assets
capitalized include third party patents and licenses purchased, as
well as deferred financing costs. Long-lived assets are reviewed for
impairment by comparing the undiscounted projected cash flows
of the related assets with their carrying amount. Any write-downs
are treated as permanent reductions in the carrying amount of
the assets.

The Company currently has long-lived assets, which include
patents on drug compounds in late stages of clinical development
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but not yet successfully developed or approved. If any of these
drug compounds fails to receive final FDA approval, we could
potentially have material write-downs of assets related to the
drug compounds.

Accounts Receivable and Bad Debt: Sepracor's trade receivables
in 2001 and 2000 primarily represent amounts due to the
Company from wholesalers, distributors and retailers of its phar-
maceutical product. Sepracor performs ongoing credit evaluations
of its customers and generally does not require collateral. Bad debt
write-offs were not significant in 2001, 2000 and 1999; however
the Company monitors its receivables closely due to few customers
making up a large partion of the averall revenues.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB,
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS

No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that all business
combinations be accounted for under the purchase method and
that certain acquired intangible assets in a business combination
be recognized as assets apart from goodwill. SFAS No. 142 requires
that ratable amortization of goodwill and certain intangible assets
be replaced with periodic tests of the goodwill's impairment and
that intangible assets be amortized over their useful lives, SFAS
No. 141 is effective for all business combinations initiated after
June 30, 2001 and for all business combinations accounted for by
the purchase method for which the date of acquisition is after
June 30, 2001, The provisions of SFAS No. 142 will be effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and will thus
be adopted by us in fiscal year 2002. However, for goodwill and
intangible assets acquired after June 30, 2001, certain provisions
of SFAS No. 142 will be effective from the date of acquisition.
The Company notes that SFAS No. 141 does not currently have
any effect on the reported financial results and does not expect
the adoption of SFAS No. 142 to have a material impact on the
Company's financial statements and related disclosures.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations.” This statement addresses financial
accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset
retirement costs. This statement applies to all entities. It applies
to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived
assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development
and/for the normal operation of a long-lived asset, except for
certain obligations of lessees. This statement is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after

June 15, 2002. The Company does not believe that the adoption
of this standard will have a material impact on the Company's
financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, "Accounting

for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” which
supercedes SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of."
SFAS No. 144 further refines the requirements of SFAS No. 121
that companies (1) recognize an impairment loss only if the carry-
ing amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable based on its
undiscounted future cash flows and (2) measure an impairment
loss as the difference between the carrying amount and fair
value of the asset. In addition, SFAS No. 144 provides guidance
on accounting and disclosure issues surrounding long-lived assets
to be disposed of by sale. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 144
during the first quarter of 2002 and does not believe that the
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adoption of this standard will have a material impact on the
Company's financial statements and related disclosures.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity requirements have historically consisted of research
and development expenses, sales and marketing expenses, capital
expenditures, working capital, debt service and general corporate
expenses. We have funded these requirements and the growth

of our business through convertible subordinated debt offerings,
the issuance of common stock, including the exercise of stock
options, and sales of product and license agreements for our drug
compounds. The Company expects to meet its short-term liquidity
needs through the use of its cash and short-term investments

on hand at December 31, 2001.

Cash Flows

Cash, cash equivalents and short and long-term investments
totaled $904,389,000 at December 31, 2001, compared to
$634,479,000 at December 31, 2000.

The net cash used in operating activities for the year ended
December 31, 2001 was $208,419,000. The net cash used in
operating activities includes a net loss from continuing operations
of $224,015,000 adjusted by non-cash charges of $15,081,000.
These charges were offset by the gain on the sale of BioSphere
common stock of $23,034,000 and the minority interest in sub-
sidiary partion of the net loss of $2,152,000. Accounts receivable
increased by $8,718,000 due primarily to the increased sales of
XOPENEX during December 2001 versus December 2000, and
inventory increased by $4,581,000 primarily due to increased
production of XOPENEX inventory. Other current assets increased
by $5,425,000 primarily due to royalty receivables related to the
Aventis Fexofenadine Agreement. The accounts payable and
accrued expense amounts increased a total of $34,353,000
primarily due to the timing of cash disbursements and increased
research and development, and sales and marketing activities.
Other current liabilities increased by $10,072,000 primarily due
to additional accruals for product revenue rebates and return
reserves as a result of increased XOPENEX revenues.

The net cash provided by investing activities for the year ended
December 31, 2001 was $77,400,000. Cash provided by net sales
of short and long-term investments was $91,078,000, and net pro-
ceeds from the saie of BioSphere stock was $26,526,000 partially
offset by the deconsolidation of BioSphere's cash of $9,405,000
and purchases of property and equipment of $28,688,000. Included
in purchases of property and equipment is $13,093,000 of foan
receivable from a construction loan agreement with a third party
related to the construction of a new corporate and research and
development building in Marlborough, Massachusetts. Sepracor
has recorded the amounts loaned as construction in progress on
the balance sheet in accordance with EITF 97-10.

Sepracor expects purchases of property and equipment costs to
be approximately $50,000,000 to $55,000,000 in 2002, of which
$14,225,000 represents an additional advance under the construc-
tion loan agreement with a third party related to the construction
of a new corporate and research and development building in
Marlborough, Massachusetts, approximately $12,000,000 is
furniture, fixtures, and leasehold improvements related to the
new building and $16,000,000 is for computer equipment and
software. The Company expects depreciation to be approximately
$12,000,000 to $15,000,000 in 2002. Sepracor has an option to
purchase the land and building being constructed upon its com-
pletion in June 2002 and extending through January 2004, at a

purchase price estimated to be $38,000,000. If Sepracor elects
to purchase the building, the construction loan outstanding,
estimated to be $27,319,000 at June 2002, would be repaid
to Sepracor.

The net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended
December 31, 2001 was $491,662,000. The Company received
approximately $486,018,000 in net proceeds from the issuance of
the $500,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 5.75% convert-
ible subordinated notes. The Company also received approximately
$4,701,000 in proceeds from the issuance of approximately
309,000 shares of Common Stock under its employee stock plans.

Sepracor does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, or
special purpose entities or activities that include non-exchange
traded contracts accounted for at fair value.

Sepracor's wholly-owned subsidiary, Sepracor Canada Limited,

has an interest free credit agreement with a Canadian provincial
business development agency for approximately $370,000 in term
debt. At December 31, 2001, Sepracor Canada Limited had received
approximately $370,000 of such term debt, of which approximately
$78,000 remains outstanding. Sepracor Canada Limited also has a
Canadian Government grant which may be repayable if Sepracor
Canada Limited fails to meet certain conditions. The grant is
recorded as debt and is being amortized over the useful lives

of the related capital assets. The unamortized balance as of
December 31, 2001 was approximately $779,000.

Line of Credit

Sepracor is party to a revolving line of credit agreement with a
commercial bank (the "Revolving Credit Agreement"), which
provides for borrowing of up to $25,000,000. In December 2001,
Sepracor amended its Revolving Credit Agreement to remove
BioSphere as a party and extended the term to March 31, 2002.
Sepracor intends to seek to extend the Revolving Credit Agreement
in 2002. Sepracor may not be able to successfully extend the
Revolving Credit Agreement or negotiate a revolving line of credit
with another commercial bank. Interest is payable monthly in
arrears at prime (4.75% at December 31, 2001) or the LIBOR rate
(1.9% at December 31, 2001) plus .75%. All borrowings are
coliateralized by certain assets of the Company. The Revolving
Credit Agreement contains covenants relating to minimum tangible
capital base, minimum cash or cash equivalents, minimum liquidity
ratio and maximum leverage. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, no
amounts were outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

Convertible Subordinated Debt

In February 1998, Sepracor issued $189,475,000 in principal
amount of 6.25% convertible subordinated debentures due 2005
(the "6.25% Debentures"). The 6.25% Debentures were convertible
into Sepracor Common Stack, at the option of the holder, at a

price of $23.685 per share and bore interest at 6.25% payable semi-
annually, commencing on August 15, 1998. The 6.25% Debentures
were redeemable by the Company commencing February 2001. As
part of the sale of the 6.25% Debentures, Sepracor incurred approx~
imately $6,105,000 of offering costs, which were recorded as other
assets and were being amortized over seven years, the term of the
6.25% Debentures. The net proceeds to the Company after offering
costs were approximately $183,370,000.

fn February 2000, Sepracor converted $96,424,000 in principal

amount of its 6.250 Debentures. Costs related to the conversion
of the 6.25% Debentures, including inducements and other costs
of approximately $7,497,000, were recorded as other expense. As
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a result of the conversion, Sepracor issued 4,071,176 shares of
Sepracor Common Stock and wrote off approximately $2,373,000
of deferred finance costs against additional paid-in capital.

In January 2001, the Company announced that on February 21, 2001
it would redeem the $92,858,000 in principal amount of 6.25%
Debentures that remained outstanding. On February 20, 2001, prior

to the redemption, all outstanding 6.25% Debentures were converted.

As a result of the conversion, Sepracor issued 3,920,608 shares of
Sepracor Common Stock and wrote off approximately $1,525,000
of deferred finance costs against additional paid-in capital.

In December 1998, Sepracor issued $300,000,000 in principal
amount of 7% convertible subordinated debentures due 2005
(the “7% Debentures"). The 7% Debentures are convertible into
Sepracor Common Stock, at the option of the holder, at a price of
$62.4375 per share and bear interest at 7% payable semi-annually,
commencing on June 15, 1999. The 7% Debentures were not
redeemable by the Company until December 20, 2001. The
Company may be required to repurchase the 7% Debentures at
the option of the holders if there was a change in control of the
Company. As part of the sale of the 7% Debentures, Sepracor
incurred approximately $9,919,000 of offering costs, which were
recorded as other assets and are being amortized over seven years,
the term of the 7% Debentures. The net proceeds to the Company
after offering costs were approximately $290,081,000.

In February 2000, Sepracor issued $400,000,000 in principal
amount of 5% convertible subordinated debentures due 2007

(the "5% Debentures”). On March 9, 2000, Sepracor issued an
additional $60,000,000 in principal amount of 5% Debentures
pursuant to an option granted to the initial purchaser of the

5% Debentures. The 5% Debentures are convertible into Sepracor
Common Stock, at the option of the holder, at a price of $92.38
per share and bear interest at 5% payable semi-annually, com-
mencing on August 15, 2000. The 5% Debentures are redeemable
by the Company prior to February 15, 2003 if the trading price of
Sepracor Common Stock exceeds 150% of the conversion price
{$138.57) for 20 trading days in a period of 30 consecutive trading
days. The 5% Debentures are redeemable by the Company on or
after February 15, 2003 if the trading price of Sepracor Common
Stock exceeds 120% of the conversion price ($110.86) for 20 trad-
ing days in a period of 30 consecutive trading days. The Company
may be required to repurchase the 5% Debentures at the option of
the holders if there is a change in controf of the Company. As part
of the sale of the 5% Debentures, Sepracor incurred approximately
$14,033,000 of offering costs, which were recorded as other assets
and are being amortized over seven years, the term of the 5%
Debentures. The net proceeds to the Company after offering costs
were approximately $445,967,000.

In November 2001, Sepracor issued $400,000,000 in principal
amount of 5.75% convertible subordinated notes due 2006

{the “5.75% Notes"). In December 2001, Sepracor issued an addi-
tional $100,000,000 in principal amount of 5.75% Notes pursuant
to an option granted to the initial purchaser of the 5.75% Notes.
The 5.75% Notes are convertible into Sepracor common stock, at
the option of the holder, at a price of $60.00 per share. The 5.75%
Notes bear interest at 5.75% payable semiannually, commencing
on May 15, 2002. The 5.75% Notes are convertible at the option
of the Company prior to maturity if the closing price of Sepracor
common stock exceeds 145% of the conversion price ($87.00) for
at least 20 out of 30 consecutive trading days ending within five
trading days prior to notice of conversion. The Company may be
required to repurchase the 5.75% Notes at the option of the
holders if there is a change in control of the Company. As part of
the sale of the 5.75% Notes, Sepracor has incurred offering costs
of approximately $13,982,000 and expects to incur total costs of
$14,500,000 which have been recorded as other assets and are
being amortized over five years, which is the term of the 5.75%
Notes. The estimated net proceeds to the Company after offering
costs are expected to be approximately $485,500,000.

Sale of BioSphere Common Stock; change to equity method
of accounting

In July 2001, Sepracor sold 2,000,000 shares of BioSphere common
stock held by it in a public offering in which BioSphere also sold
2,000,000 shares of its common stock at a price to the public of
$11.00 per share. On August 2, 2001, the underwriters exercised
their over-allotment option to purchase an additional 600,000
shares of BioSphere common stock from Sepracor at a price to
the public of $11.00 per share. Sepracor received net proceeds,
after offering costs, from the sale of BioSphere common stock
of approximately $26,526,000 and has recognized a gain of
approximately $23,034,000 in 2001. Sepracor recorded approxi-
mately $5,590,000 through additional paid-in capital as its gain
on BioSphere's sale of 2,000,000 shares of BioSphere common
stock. As a result of the public offering, Sepracor's ownership in
BioSphere has been reduced from approximately 55% to 25% as
of December 31, 2001. Sepracor no longer consolidates BioSphere
and now records its investment in BioSphere under the equity
method, effective July 3, 2001. Sepracor has recorded $1,601,000
as its share of BioSphere losses for the six months ended
December 31, 2001.
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We have summarized below our material contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2001.

Total

Contractual Obligations (in thousands)

Four to After Five
Five Years Years
(2006-2007) (after 2007)

Less Than One to Three
One Year Years
(2002) (2003-2005)

$1,259,960
342,739

Convertible subordinated debt - principal @
Convertible subordinated debt - interest @

Capital lease obligations 1,284
Operating leases 5,000
Long-term debt 78

$ - $299,960 $ 960,000 -

72,747 218,242 51,750 -

579 705 - _
1,247 2,540 1213
67 1 -

Total material contractual cash obligations $1,609,061

$74,640 $521,458 $1,012,963

W If the convertible subordinated debt were converted into common stock these amounts would no longer be a contractual cash obligation.

The Company's 7% Debentures, 5% Debentures and 5.75% Notes are currently trading at discounts to their respective face amounts. Accordingly, in order to
reduce future cash interest payments, as well as future amounts due at maturity, Sepracor has, subsequent to December 31, 2001, and through March 27, 2002
exchanged approximately $97,000,000 of its convertible subordinated debt in privately negotiated transactions, for approximately 3,541,000 shares of its
common stock. Sepracor, may from time to time, depending on market conditions, exchange shares of Sepracor common stock for additional outstanding
convertible subordinated debt, and the number of shares that it might issue as a result of such exchanges would significantly exceed the number of shares
originally issuable upon conversion of such debt. Accordingly such exchanges could result in material dilution to holders of Sepracor common stock. There

can be no assurance that Sepracor will exchange any or all of its outstanding convertible subordinated debt for shares of Sepracor common stock.

The Company has no material related party activities in 2001, other
than those relating to conversion of BioSphere common stock.

The Company believes its existing cash and the anticipated cash
flow from its current strategic alliances and operations will be
sufficient to support existing operations through 2003. Sepracor's
actual future cash requirements, however, will depend on many
factors, including the progress of its preclinical, clinical, and
research programs, the number and breadth of these programs,
achievement of milestones under these strategic alliance arrange-
ments, sales of its products, acquisitions, its ability to establish and
maintain additional strategic alliances and licensing arrangements,
and the progress of the Company's development efforts and the
development efforts of its strategic partners. Based on its current
operating plan, the Company believes that it will not be required
to raise additional capital to fund the repayment of its outstand-
ing convertible debt when due. However, if the Company is not
able to commercialize its current late-stage products, including
both SOLTARA and ESTORRA, or if such products do not achieve
expected sales levels, Sepracor may be required to raise additional
funds in order to repay its outstanding convertible debt and there
can be no assurance that, if required, Sepracor would be able to
raise such funds on favorable terms, if at all.

Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest
rates and equity prices, which could affect its future results

of operations and financial condition. The Company manages
its exposure to these risks through its regular operating and
financing activities.

Interest Rates: Although the Company's investments are subject
to credit risk and interest rate risk, the Company's investment
policy specifies credit quality standards for its investments and the
Company's investment portfolio is always in compliance with its
investment policy. The primary objective of the investment policy
is the preservation of capital. Due to the conservative nature of
the Company's investments and relatively short duration, interest
rate risk is mitigated.

The interest rates on the Company's convertible subordinated
debentures and capital lease obligations are fixed and therefore
not subject to interest rate risk.

Equity Prices: The Company's convertible subordinated debt is
sensitive to fluctuations in the price of the Company's Common
Stock into which the debt is convertible. Changes in equity prices
would result in changes in the fair value of the Company’s
convertible subordinated debt due to the difference between

the current market price of the debt and the market price at the
date of issuance of the debt. A 10% decrease in the price of the
Company's common stock at December 31, 2001 could result in

a decrease of approximately $126 million on the net fair value
of the Company's convertible subordinated debt.

Legal Proceedings
Currently, Sepracor is not party to any material legal proceedings.

Factors Affecting Future Operating Results

Certain of the information contained in this Annual Report,
including information with respect to the safety, efficacy and
potential benefits of the Company's drugs under development
and the scope of patent protection with respect to these products
and information with respect to the other plans and strategies for
the Company's business and the business of the subsidiaries and
certain affiliates of the Company, consists of forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking statements contained in this
Annual Report represent our expectations as of the date of this
Annual Report. Subsequent events will cause our expectations to
change. However, while we may elect to update these forward-
looking statements, we specifically disclaim any intention or
obligation to do so. Important factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements
include the following:

We have never been profitable and we may not be able to generate
revenues sufficient to achieve profitability. We have not been
profitable since inception, and it is passible that we will not
achieve profitability. We incurred net losses applicable to common
shares on a consolidated basis of approximately $224.0 million
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for the year ended December 31, 2001 and $204.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2000. As a result, in part, of the FDA's
issuance of a "not-approvable” letter with respect to SOLTARA,

we anticipate that our net loss in fiscal 2002 will exceed that
incurred in fiscal 2001. We expect to continue to incur significant
operating and capital expenditures. As a result, we will need to
generate significant revenues to achieve and maintain profitability.
We cannot assure you that we will achieve significant revenues

or that we will ever achieve profitability. Even if we do achieve
profitability, we cannot assure you that we can sustain or increase
profitability on a quarterly or annual basis in the future. If
revenues grow more slowly than we anticipate or if operating
expenses exceed our expectations or cannot be adjusted accord-
ingly, our business, results of operations and financial conditions
will be materially and adversely affected.

If we or our development partners are not successful in
developing and commercializing our principal products under
development, then our ability to become profitable will be
adversely affected. Our ability to generate profitability will
depend in large part on successful commercialization of our
initial products and successful development and commercialization
of principal products under development. Failure to successfully
commercialize our products and products under development may
have a material adverse effect on our business. In March 2002,
we were informed by the FDA that it issued a "not approvable”
letter for our NDA for SOLTARA brand tecastemizole 15 mg and
30 mg capsules. While we had expected to launch SOLTARA in the
US. during 2002, we will not be able to commercialize SOLTARA
unless and until we receive approval from the FDA. Currently, we
do not expect to receive approval, if at all, for at least one year. In
addition, before we commercialize any of our product candidates,
we will need to file an NDA, and the FDA will need to approve the
NDA. If the FDA delays or denies approval of any NDA that we file
in the future, then successful commercialization of our products
under development may be delayed or terminated, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business.

We are entitled to receive royalties on sales, if any, of ticalopride
under our agreement with Janssen. In April 2001, Janssen
announced that it had suspended clinical trials of ticalopride
pending further analysis of a small number of adverse events
reported in patients. We do not know if or when ticalopride may
be approved or the timing of commercialization of ticalopride.

In addition, if other collaborative agreements are terminated or
commercialization efforts under those agreements are delayed or
unsuccessful, then successful commercialization of the products
under development may be detayed or terminated and our royalty
revenues could be delayed andfor reduced, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

in May 2001, an advisory panel to the FDA recommended that the
FDA allow certain popular aliergy medication to be sold without a
prescription. The FDA may or may not accept the recommendation
of the advisory panel. If the FDA approves the sale of these allergy
medications without prescription, our business may be adversely
affected because royalty revenues may be reduced and the market
for prescription drugs, including SOLTARA brand tecastemizole,
may be adversely affected.

We will be required to expend significant resources for research,
development, testing and regulatory approval of our drugs under
development and these drugs may not be developed successfully,
We develop and commercialize proprietary products for the primary
care and specialty markets. Most of our drug candidates are still
undergoing clinical trials or are in the early stages of development.

Our ICE drugs may not provide greater benefits or fewer side
effects than the original versions of these drugs and our research
efforts may not lead to the discovery of new drugs with benefits
over existing treatments or development of new therapies. All of
our drugs under development will require significant additional
research, development, preclinical andfor clinical testing, regulatory
approval and a commitment of significant additional resources
prior to their commercialization. Our potential products may not:

© be developed successfully;
© be proven safe and efficacious in clinical trials;

o offer therapeutic or other improvements over
comparable drugs;

° meet applicable regulatory standards;
© be approved for commercialization by the FDA;

© be capable of being produced in commercial quantities
at acceptable costs; or

© e successfully marketed.

If sales of XOPENEX do not continue to increase, we will not have
sufficient revenues to achieve our business plan. All of our rev-
enue from product sales and substantially all of our total revenue
for the years ended December 31, 2000 and December 31, 2001,
resulted from sales of XOPENEX. In March 2002, the United States
Food and Drug Administration issued a “not approvable" letter
for our next product SOLTARA 15 mg and 30 mg capsules.
Accordingly, we expect that sales of XOPENEX will represent all

of our product sales and the majority of our total revenues for
the next several years. If sales of XOPENEX do not continue to
increase, we will not have sufficient revenues to achieve our
business plan.

If XOPENEX does not continue to compete successfully against
competitive products, our business will not be successful.
XOPENEX competes primarily against generic albuterol in the
asthma market, XOPENEX is more expensive than generic albuterol.
We must continue to demaonstrate to physicians and other health-
care professionals that the benefits of XOPENEX justify the higher
price. If XOPENEX does not continue to compete successfully
against competitive products, our business will not be successful.

If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property rights or
face a claim of intellectual property infringement by a third party,
then we could fose valuable intellectual property rights, be liable
for significant domages or be prevented from commercializing
our products. Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain
and maintain patents, protect trade secrets and operate without
infringing upon the proprietary rights of others. In the absence of
patent and trade secret protection, competitors may adversely
affect our business by independently developing and marketing
substantially equivalent products and technology and preventing
us from marketing our products. it is also possible that we could
incur substantial costs in litigation if we are required to defend
ourselves in patent suits brought by third parties, or if we are
required to initiate litigation against others to protect our
intellectual property rights.

We have filed patent applications covering composition of,
methods of making and methods of using, single isomer or
active metabolite forms of various compounds for specific
applications. Qur revenues under collaboration agreements with
pharmaceutical companies depend in part on the existence and
scope of issued patents. We may not be issued patents based on
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patent applications already filed or that we file in the future and
if patents are issued, they may be insufficient in scope to cover
the products we seek to commercialize or products licensed under
these collaboration agreements. Moreover, the patent position

of companies in the pharmaceutical industry generally involves
complex legal and factual questions, and recently has been the
subject of much litigation. Legal standards relating to the scope
and validity of patent claims are evolving. Any patents we have
obtained, or obtain in the future, may be challenged, invalidated or
circumvented. Moreover, the United States Patent and Trademark
Office, which we refer to as the PTO, may commence interference
proceedings involving our patents or patent applications. Any
challenge to, or invalidation or circumvention of, our patents or
patent applications would be costly, would require significant time
and attention of our management and could have a material
adverse effect on our business.

Our ability to commercialize any drug successfully will largely
depend upon our ability to obtain and maintain patents of
sufficient scope to prevent third parties from developing similar or
competitive products. Third parties, typically drug companies, hold
patents or patent applications covering compositions, methods of
making and uses, covering the composition of matter for most of
the drug candidates for which we have use or patent applications.
Third parties also hold patents relating to drug delivery technology
that may be necessary for the development or commercialization
of some of our drug candidates. In each of these cases, unless

we have or obtain a license agreement, we generally may not
commercialize the drug candidates until these third-party patents
expire or are declared invalid or unenforceable by the courts.
Licenses may not be available to us on acceptable terms, if at all.
In addition, it would be costly for us to contest the validity of a
third-party patent or defend any claim that we infringe a third-
party patent. Moreover, litigation involving third-party patents
may not be resolved in our favor. Such contests and litigation
would require significant time and attention of our management,
could prevent us from commercializing our products, could require
us to pay significant damages and could have a material adverse
effect on our business.

If our products do not receive government approval, then we will
not be able to commercialize them. The FDA and similar foreign
agencies must approve the marketing and sale of pharmaceutical
products developed by us or our development partners. These
agencies impose substantial requirements on the manufacture and
marketing of drugs. Any unanticipated preclinical and clinical
studies we are required to undertake could resuit in a significant
increase in the funds we will require to advance our products to
commercialization. In addition, the failure by us or our collabora-
tive development partners to obtain regulatory approval on a
timely basis, or at all, the attempt by us or our collaborative
development partners to receive regulatory approval to achieve
labeling objectives, could prevent or adversely affect the timing
of the commercial introduction of, or our ability to market and
sell, our products. In March 2002, we were informed by the FDA
that it issued a “not approvable” letter for our NDA for SOLTARA
brand tecastemizole 15 mg and 30 mg capsules. While we had
expected to launch SOLTARA in the U.S. during 2002, we will not
be able to commercialize SOLTARA unless and until we receive
approval from the FDA and, currently, we do not expect to receive
an approval, if at all, for at least one year. In response to issues
raised by the FDA regarding completeness of our NDA for eszopi-
clone, we are conducting additional preclinical studies to support
use of RPR’s preclinical data package, including carcinogenicity
studies. Assuming favorable results from the ongoing studies, we
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anticipate submitting an NDA for eszopiclone to the FDA in 2002,
which, if approved, we would market under the name ESTORRA.
Before we commercialize any of our product candidates, we will
need to file NDAs, and the FDA will need to approve our NDAs. If
the FDA delays or denies approval of any NDA that we file in the
future, then successful commercialization of our products under
development may be defayed or terminated, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

The regulatory process to obtain marketing approval requires
clinical trials of a product to establish its safety and efficacy.
Problems that may arise during clinical trials include:

o results of clinical trials may not be consistent with
preclinical study results;

o results from later phases of clinical trials may not be
consistent with the results from earlier phases; and

© products may not be shown to be safe and efficacious.

Even if the FDA or similar foreign agencies grant us regulatory
approval of a product, the approval may take longer than we
anticipate and may be subject to limitations on the indicated uses
for which the product may be marketed or contain requirements
for costly post-marketing follow-up studies. Moreover, if we fail
to comply with applicable regulatory requirements, we may be
subject to fines, suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approvals,
product recalls, seizure of products, operating restrictions and
criminal prosecution.

The development and commercialization of our products and prod-
uct candidates could be delayed or terminated if our collaboration
partners terminate, or fail to perform their obligations under, their
agreements with us or if any of our collaboration agreements is
subject to lengthy government review. We have entered into
collaboration arrangements with pharmaceutical companies. Our
revenues under these collaboration arrangements will consist
primarily of royalties on sales of products. Any such payments

and royalties will depend in large part on the development and
commercialization efforts of our collaboration partners, which

we cannot control. If any of our collaboration partners does not
devote sufficient time and resources to its collaboration arrange-
ment with us, we may not realize the potential commercial
benefits of the arrangement, and our results of operations may

be adversely affected. In addition, if regulatory approval of any
product candidate under development by our collaboration part-
ners is delayed or limited, we may not realize or may be delayed

in realizing the potential commercial benefits of the arrangement.
If any of our collaboration partners were to breach or terminate
its agreement with us or fail to perform its obligations to us in

a timely manner, the development and commercialization of the
products could be delayed or terminated. Any failure or inability
by us to perform, or any breach by us in our performance of,

our obligations under a collaboration agreement could reduce or
extinguish the benefits to which we are otherwise entitled under
the agreement. Any delay or termination of this type could have a
material, adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations because we may be required to expend additional funds
to bring our products to commercialization, we may lose technol-
ogy rights and milestone or royalty payments from coilaboration
partners or revenue from product sales, if any, could be delayed

or terminated. We are entitled to receive royalties on sales, if any,
of ticalopride under our agreement with Janssen. in April 2001,
Janssen announced that it had suspended clinical trials of
ticalopride pending further analysis of a small number of adverse
events reported in patients. We do not know if or when ticalopride
may be approved or the timing of commercialization of ticalopride.
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Development and commercialization of some of our product
candidates may depend on our ability to enter into additional
collaboration agreements with pharmaceutical companies to fund
all or part of the costs of development and commercialization
of these product candidates. We may not be able to enter into
collaboration agreements and the terms of the collaboration
agreements, if any, may not be favorable to us. The inability to
enter into collaboration agreements could delay or preclude the
development, manufacture andfor marketing of some of our
drugs and could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations because:

© we may be required to expend additional funds to
advance the drugs to commercialization;

o revenue from product sales could be delayed; or
© we may elect not to commercialize the drugs.

We are required to file a notice under the Hart-Scott-Rodino
Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, which we refer
to as HSR Act, for certain agreements containing exclusive license
grants and to delay the effectiveness of any such exclusive license
until the expiration or earlier termination of the notice and
waiting period under the HSR Act. If the expiration or termination
of the notice and waiting period under the HSR Act is delayed
because of lengthy government review, or if the Federal Trade
Commission or Department of Justice successfully challenges such
a license, development and commercialization could be delayed or
precluded and our business could be adversely affected.

We have limited sales and marketing experience and expect to
incur significant expenses in developing a sales force. We also
rely on third parties for sales of our products. In addition, our
limited sales and marketing experience may restrict our success
in commercializing our products. We currently have limited
marketing and sales experience. If we successfully develop and
obtain regulatory approval for the products we are currently
developing, we may license some of them to large pharmaceutical
companies and market and sefl through our direct sales forces or
through other arrangements, including co-promotion arrange-
ments. We have established a direct sales force to market
XOPENEX. We also expect to use a direct sales force to market
SOLTARA brand tecastemizole, if approved. As we begin to enter
into co-promotion arrangements or market and sell additional
products directly, we will need to significantly expand our sales
force. We expect to incur significant expense in expanding our
direct sales force. With respect to products under development,
we expect to incur significant costs in developing a sales force
before the products have been approved for marketing. Our limited
experience in developing, maintaining and expanding a direct sales
force may restrict our success in commercializing our products.

Our ability to realize significant revenues from direct marketing
and sales activities depends on our ability to attract and retain
qualified sales personnel in the pharmaceutical industry and
competition for these persons is intense. If we are unable to
attract and retain qualified sales personnel, we will not be able

to successfully expand our marketing and direct sales force on

a timely or cost effective basis. We may also need to enter into
additional co-promotion arrangements with third parties where
our own direct sales force is neither well situated nor large
enough to achieve maximum penetration in the market. We may
not be successful in entering into any co-promotion arrangements,
and the terms of any co-promotion arrangements may not be
favorable to us. We depend in large part on a third-party contract
sales organization for sales of XOPENEX and we may contract

with third-party contract sales organizations in the future for
other products, if successfully developed and approved, including
SOLTARA brand tecastemizole. We cannot control the level of
effort and quality of service provided by co-promaters or any
third party sales force. If the level of effort andfor quality of
service provided by these third parties are not adequate, our
revenues would be adversely affected.

If we do not maintain current good manufacturing practices, then
the FDA could refuse to approve marketing applications. We do
not have the capability to manufacture in sufficient quantities oll
of the products which may be approved for sale, and developing
and obtaining this capability wilf be time consuming and expen-
sive. The FDA and other regulatory authorities require that our
products be manufactured according to their good manufacturing
practices regulations. The failure by us, our collaborative develop-
ment partners or third-party manufacturers to maintain current
good manufacturing practices compliance andfor our failure to
scale up our manufacturing processes could lead to refusal by the
FDA to approve marketing applications. Failure in either respect
could also be the basis for action by the FDA to withdraw
approvals previously granted and for other regulatory action.

Failure to increase our manufacturing capabilities may mean that
even if we develop promising new products, we may not be able
to produce them. We currently operate a manufacturing plant
that is compliant with current good manufacturing practices
that we believe can produce commercial quantities of the active
pharmaceutical ingredient (AP}) for XOPENEX and support the
production of our other product candidates in amounts needed
for our clinical trials. However, we will not have the capability
to manufacture in sufficient quantities all of the products which
may be approved for sale. Accordingly, we will be required to
spend money to expand our current manufacturing facility, build
an additional manufacturing facility or contract the production
of these drugs to third-party manufacturers.

QOur relionce on a third-party manufacturer could adversely offect
our ability to meet our customers’ demands. Automatic Liquid
Packaging, a division of Cardinal Health, Inc,, is currently the

sole finished goods manufacturer of our product XOPENEX. If
Automatic Liquid Packaging experiences delays or difficulties in
producing, packaging or delivering XOPENEX, we could be unable
to meet our customers’ demands for XOPENEX, which could

lead to customer dissatisfaction and damage to our reputation.
Furthermore, if we are required to change manufacturers, we will
be required to verify that the new manufacturer maintains facili-
ties and procedures that comply with quality standards and with
all applicable regulations and guidelines. The delays associated
with the verification of a new manufacturer could negatively
affect our ability to produce XOPENEX in a timely manner or
within budget.

If we or our collaboration partners fail to obtain on adequate
level of reimbursement for our future products or services by third
party payors, there may be no commerciafly viable markets for
our products or services. The availability and amounts of reim-
bursement by governmental and other third party payors affects
the market for any pharmaceutical product or service, These third
party payors continually attempt to contain or reduce the costs of
healthcare by challenging the prices charged for medical praducts
and services. In certain foreign countries, including the countries
of the EU, the pricing of prescription pharmaceuticals is subject
to governmental control. We may not be able to sell our products
profitably if reimbursement is unavailable or limited in scope

or amount.
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In both the United States and certain foreign jurisdictions, there
have been a number of legislative and regulatory proposals to
change the healthcare system. Further proposals are likely. The
potential for adoption of these proposals affects or will affect

our ability to raise capital, obtain additional collaboration partners
and market our products. We expect to experience pricing pres-
sure for our existing products and any future products for which
marketing approval is obtained due to the trend toward managed
healthcare, the increasing influence of health maintenance
organizations and additional legislative proposals.

We could be exposed to significant liability claims that could
prevent or interfere with our product commercialization efforts.
We may be subjected to product liability claims that arise through
the testing, manufacturing, marketing and sale of human health
care products. These claims could expose us to significant liabilities
that could prevent or interfere with our product commercializa-
tion efforts. Product liability claims could require us to spend
significant time and money in litigation or to pay significant
damages. Although we maintain product liability insurance
caverage for both the clinical trials and commercialization of aur
products, it is possible that we will not be able to obtain further
product liability insurance on acceptable terms, if at all, and that
our insurance coverage may not provide adequate coverage
against all potential claims.

We have significant long-term debt and we may not be able

to make interest or principal payments when due. Our exchanges
of debt into shares of common stock could result in additional
dilution. As of December 31, 2001, our total long-term debt was
approximately $1,260.2 million and our stockholders' equity
(deficit) was ($313.7) million. In November and December 2001,

we issued an aggregate of $500.0 million in aggregate principal
amount of 5.75% convertible subordinated notes with auto-
conversion provision due 2006. None of the 7% convertible
subordinated debentures due 2005, the 5% convertible subordi-
nated debentures due 2007, or the 5.75% notes due 2006 restricts
our ability or our subsidiaries ability to incur additional indebted-
ness, including debt that ranks senior to the 7% debentures, the
5% debentures, and the 5.75% notes. Additional indebtedness that
we incur may rank senior to or on parity with these debentures and
notes in certain circumstances. Our ability to satisfy our obligations
will depend upon our future performance, which is subject to many
factors, including factors beyond our control. The conversion price
for the 7% debentures is $62.4375, the conversion price for the
5% debentures is $92.38 and the conversion price for the 5.75%
notes is $60.00. If the market price for our common stock does not
exceed the conversion price, the holders of the debentures and
notes may not convert their securities into common stock.

Historically, we have had negative cash flow from operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, net cash used in operating
activities was approximately $208.4 million. The annual debt
service on our debentures and notes, assuming none of these
securities is converted or redeemed, is approximately $72.8 million.
Unless we are able to generate sufficient operating cash flow to
service the debentures and notes, we will be required to raise
additional funds or default on our obligations under the
debentures and notes. Based on our current operating plan, we
believe that we will not be required to raise additional capital to
fund the repayment of our outstanding convertible debt when
due. However, if we are not able to commercialize our current
late-stage product candidates, including both SOLTARA and
ESTORRA, or if such product candidates, if approved, do not
achieve expected sales levels, we may be required to raise

additional funds in order to repay our outstanding convertible
debt and there can be no assurance that, if required, we would
be able to raise such funds on favorable terms, if at all.

Our 7% debentures, 5% debentures and 5.75% notes are currently
trading at discounts to their respective face amounts. Accordingly,
in order 1o reduce future cash interest payments, as well as future
amounts due at maturity, we have, subsequent to December 31,
2001, and through March 27, 2002, exchanged, in privately negoti-
ated transactions, approximately $97.0 million of our convertible
subordinated debt for approximately 3,541,000 shares of our
comman stock. We may, from time to time, depending on market
conditions, exchange shares of our common stock for additional
outstanding convertible subordinated debt, and the number of
shares that we might issue as a result of such exchanges would
significantly exceed the number of shares originally issuable upon
conversion of such debt. Accordingly, such exchanges could result
in material dilution to holders of our common stock. There can be
no assurance that we will exchange any or all of our outstanding
convertible subordinated debt for shares of our common stock.

If sufficient funds to finance our business are not available to us
when needed or on acceptable terms, then we may be required to
delay, scale back, eliminate or alter our strategy for our programs.
We may require additional funds for our research and product
development programs, operating expenses, the pursuit of regula-
tory approvals, license or acguisition opportunities and the
expansion of our production, sales and marketing capabilities.
Historically, we have satisfied our funding needs through collabo-
ration arrangements with corporate partners and equity and debt
financings. These funding sources may not be available to us when
needed in the future, and, if available, they may not be on terms
acceptable to us. Insufficient funds could require us to delay, scale
back or eliminate certain of our research and product development
programs or to license third parties to commercialize products or
technologies that we would otherwise develop or commercialize
oursefves, Our cash requirements may vary materially from those
now planned because of factors including:

© patent developments;

© licensing or acguisition opportunities;

o relationships with collaboration partners;
© the FDA regulatory process;

© our capital requirements; and

o selling, marketing and manufacturing expenses in
connection with commercialization of products.

We expect to face intense competition and our competitors have
greater resources and capabilities than we have. Developments
by others may render our products or technologies obsolete or
noncompetitive. We expect to encounter intense competition in
the sale of our current and future products. If we are unable to
compete effectively, our financial condition and results of opera-
tions could be materially adversely affected because we may use
our financial resources to seek {o differentiate ourselves from our
competition and because we may not achieve our product revenue
objectives. Many of our competitors and potential competitors,
which include pharmaceutical companies, biotechnology firms,
universities and other research institutions, have substantially
greater resources, manufacturing and marketing capabilities,
research and development staff and production facilities than

we have, The fields in which we compete are subject to rapid and
substantial technological change. Our competitors may be able
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to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies or to
devote greater resources to the development, manufacture and
marketing of new products andfor technologies than we can. As
a result, any products andfor technologies that we develop may
become obsolete or noncompetitive before we can recaver
expenses incurred in connection with their development.

Fluctuations in the demand for products, the success and timing
of collaboration arrangements and regulatory approval, any
termination of development efforts, expenses and the results

of operations of our subsidiaries will cause fluctuations in our
quarterly operating results, which could cause volatility in our
stock price. Our quarterly operating results are likely to fluctuate
significantly, which could cause our stock price to be volatile.
These fluctuations will depend on factors, which include:

© the success and timing of regulatory filings and approvals
for products developed by us or our collaboration partners
or for collaborative agreements;

o the success and timing of collaboration agreements for
development of our pharmaceutical candidates and
development costs for those pharmaceuticals;

o the termination of development efforts of any product
under development or any collaboration agreement;

© the timing of receipt of upfront, milestone or royalty
payments under collaboration agreements;

© the timing of product sales and market penetration;

© the timing of operating expenses, including selling and
marketing expenses and the costs of expanding and
maintaining a direct sales force; and

© the timing of expenses we may incur with respect
to any license or acquisitions of products or
technologies

Our stock price could be highly volatile, which could cause you
to lose part or afl of your investment. The market price of our
common stock, like that of the common stock of many other
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, may be highly
volatile. In addition, the stock market has experienced extreme
price and volume fluctuations. This volatility has significantly
affected the market prices of securities of many pharmaceutical
and biotechnology companies for reasons frequently untelated to
or disproportionate to the operating performance of the specific
companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect
the market price of our common stock. Prices for our common
stock will be determined in the market place and may be influ-
enced by many factors, including variations in our financial results
and investors' perceptions of us, changes in recommendations

by securities analysts as well as their perceptions of general
economic, industry and market conditions.

Supplemental Stockholder Information

Price Range of Common Stock

The Sepracor Common Stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Market
under the symbol SEPR. Gn March 13, 2002, the closing price of the
Company's Common Stock, s reported on the NASDAQ National Market,
was $21.29 per share, The following table sets forth for the periods
indicated the high and low sales prices per share of the Common Stock
as reported by the NASDAQ National Market. The share prices set forth
below have been adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split of the
Company's Common Stock effected on February 25, 2000.

2002 High Low

First Quarter (through March 15, 2002) $57.25 $17.15
2001 High Low

First Quarter 81.88 24.81
Second Quarter 46.20 23.45
Third Quarter 46.28 30.00
Fourth Quarter 60.05 35.09
2000 High Low

First Quarter 126.81 45,06
Second Quarter 12500 51.75
Third Quarter 140.00 90.50
Fourth Quarter 124.81 61.50

On March 13, 2002, Sepracor had approximately 492 stockholders
of record.

Dividend Policy

Sepracor has never paid cash dividends on its Common Stock. The
Company currently intends to reinvest its future earnings, if any, for
use in the business and does not expect to pay cash dividends.

Form 10-K

A copy of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2001 is available without charge upon written
request to:

Investor Relations
Sepracor Inc.

111 Locke Drive
Marlborough, MA 01752
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Report of Independent Accountants

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Sepracor Inc.

In our opinion, based upon our audits and the report of other auditors, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and
the related consolidated statements of operations, of stockholders’ equity (deficit) and comprehensive income, and of cash
flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Sepracor Inc. and its subsidiaries {the "Company")
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of BioSphere Medical
Inc., a majority-owned subsidiary through July 2, 2001, which statements reflect total assets of 3% of the related
consolidated totals as of December 31, 2000, and total revenues of 5% and 10% of the related consolidated totals for each
of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2000. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report
thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
BioSphere Medical Inc. through December 31, 2000, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our
audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America which
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the report of other auditors provide

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
January 21, 2002, except as to the information in

Note V for which the date is March 27, 2002




Sepracor Inc. Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, (in thousands, except par value amounts) 2001 2000
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 715,082 $ 354,058
Short-term investments 116,063 248,818
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $585 and $378 at December 31, 2001 and 2000 21,660 14,756
Inventories 9,773 5,998
Other assets 10,395 5212
Total current assets 872973 628,842
Long-term investments 73,244 31,603
Property and equipment, net 43,846 22,676
Investment in affiliates 43,089 13,746
Patents, intangible assets and other assets, net 60,379 54,091
Total assets $ 1,093,531 $ 750,958
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 2509 $ 30665
Accrued expenses 102,598 65,560
Notes payable and current portion of capital lease obligation
and long-term debt 624 144
Other current liabilities 17,524 7,810
Total current liabilities 145,837 104,179
Long-term debt and capital lease obligation 1,436 1,098
Convertible subordinated debt 1,259,960 852,818
Other long-term liabilities - 478
Total liabilities 1,407,233 958,573
Minority interest - 7,059
Commitments and contingencies (Notes M and N)
Stockholders” equity (deficit)
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 1,000 shares authorized,
none outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000 - -
Common stock, $.10 par value, 240,000 and 240,000 shares authorized; 78,059 and
73,829 shares issued and outstanding, at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively 7,806 7,383
Additional paid-in capital 562,341 461,195
Unearned compensation, net (120} (189)
Accumulated deficit (917,402} (693,387)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 33,673 10,324
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) (313,702) (214,674)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit) $ 1,083,531 $ 750,958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Sepracor Inc. Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31, (in thousands, except loss per common share amounts) 2001 2000 1999
Revenues:

Product sales $ 125248 § 57,160 $ 16,383

Royalties 25,663 2,573 2,000

License fees and other 1,184 21,939 1,886

Collaborative research and development - 3,573 2,390
Total revenues 152,095 85,245 22,659
Costs and expenses:

Cost of products sold 15,411 11,278 481

Cost of license fees and other 493 3,056 108

Research and development 231,278 170,759 122,400

Selling, marketing and distribution 111,654 77,410 48,211

General and administrative and patent costs 19,732 20,988 17,125
Total costs and expenses 378,568 283,49 192,655
Loss from operations (226,473) (198,246) (169,996}
Other income {expense):

Interest income 25,669 41,919 21,896

Interest expense (47,793) (47,760) (33,078)

Equity in investee gains (losses) (1,601) 3,501 (3,246)

Other income (expense) 997 (7,051) 272

Gain on sale of BioSphere stock 23,034 - -
Net loss before minority interest (226,167) (207,837) (184,152}
Minority interest in subsidiaries 2,152 3,620 1,438
Net loss from continuing operations (224,015) (204,017) (182,714)
Discontinued operations:

Loss from discontinued operations (net of minority interest} - - (345)
Net loss $ (224,015) $ (204017) $ (183,059)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share from continuing operations $ (2.89) $ (2.80) $ (2.77)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share from discontinued operations $ - $ - $ (0.00)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share $ {2.89) $ (2.80) $ 277
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per common share:

Basic and diluted 77534 72,757 66,049

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Sepracor Inc. Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) and Comprehensive Income

Accumulated Total
Additional Other Stockholders'
Year ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 Common Stock Paid-In Unearned Accumulated Comprehensive Equity
fin thousands) Shares  Amount Capital Compensation Deficit fncome (Loss) (Deficit)
Balance at December 31, 1998 65313  $6531  $304403 $ (144) $ {306,311) $ (51 $ 4428
Comprehensive income {loss):
Net loss (183,059) (183,059)
Foreign currency translation (408) (408)
Total comprehensive income (loss) (183,465)
Issuance of common stock to employees
under stock plans 1968 197 12,813 13,010
Unearned compensation, net 129 (73) 56
Compensation expense 419 419
Issuance of common stack for purchase of
intangible technology 200 20 7,930 7,950
Gain on issuance of subsidiary's stock 1,897 1,897
Balance at December 31, 1999 67,481 6,748 327,591 {217) (489,370) (457) {155,705)
Comprehensive income ({oss):
Net loss (204,017) (204,017)
Foreign currency translation 33 33
Unrealized gain on marketable equity securities 10,748 10,748
Total comprehensive income (loss) {193,236}
Issuance of common stock to employees
under stock plans 2,268 227 33,600 33,827
Unearned compensation, net 40 28 68
Issuance of common stock from conversion
of subordinated convertible debentures 4,080 408 408
Conversion of debentures 96,249 96,249
Deferred finance costs from the conversion
of subordinated convertible debentures (2,373) (2.373)
BioSphere issuance of common stock 18,274 18,274
Sepracor investment in BioSphere (5,000) (5,000)
Minority interest in proceeds of BioSphere
common stock (9,864} (9,864)
BioSphere deferred compensation 1,261 1,261
Gain on issuance of HemaSure stock (net) 1,417 1417
Balance at December 31, 2000 73,829 7,383 461,195 (189) (693,387) 10,324 (214,674)
Comprehensive income (loss}:
Net loss (224,015) (224,015)
Foreign currency translation 497 497
Unrealized gain on marketable equity securities 22852 22,852
Total comprehensive income (loss) (200,666)
Issuance of common stock to employees
under stock plans 309 3 4,661 4,692
Unearned compensation, net 69 69
Issuance of common stock from conversion
of subordinated convertible debentures 3921 392 92,466 92,858
Deferred finance costs from the conversion
of subordinated convertible debentures (1,525) {1,525)

Net of of BioSphere investment, loss,
minority interest and deconsolidation 5,544 5.544
Balance at December 31, 2001 78,059  $7,806  $562,341 $(120) $(917,402) $33,673 $(313,702)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Sepracor Inc. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, {in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $(224,015) $(204,017) $(183,059)
Less: Net lass from discontinued operations (net of minority interest) - - (345)
Net loss from continuing operations (224,015) (204,017) (182,714)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 13,048 11,536 7,522
Gain on sale of BioSphere stock (23,034) - -
Minority interests in subsidiaries (2,152) (3,620) (1,438)
Equity in investee (gains) losses 1,601 (3,501) 3,246
Provision for bad debt 145 51 165
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 287 25 6
Stock compensation - 1,261 419
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (8.718) (10,565) (3,883)
Inventories (4,581) (1,543) (4,061)
Other current assets (5.425) 243 (4,007)
Accounts payable (4,491) 10,469 10,535
Accrued expenses 38,844 22,985 11,095
Other current liabilities 10,072 5,733 (424)
Net cash used in operating activities (208,419) (170,943) (163,539)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of short and long-term investments (535,761) (936,914) (478,517)
Sales and maturities of short and long-term investments 626,839 932,888 406,456
Additions to property and equipment (28.688) (8,837) (6,968)
Purchase of intangible assets - {12,500) (10,000}
Net proceeds from sale of BioSphere stock 26,526 - -
Deconsolidation of BioSphere cash (9,405) - -
Investment in subsidiary and affiliates - (5,950) (3,000)
Cash acquired in acquisition of BioSphere SA - - 283
Other assets (2,111) (1.261) 1,569
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 77,400 (32,574) (90,177)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 4,701 52,101 13,010
Proceeds from sale of convertible subordinated debt 500,000 460,000 -
Costs associated with sale of convertible subordinated debt {13,982) (14,033) {276)
Repayments of long-term debt capital leases and line of credit agreements (532) (151) (4,090)
Borrowings of long-term debt, capital leases and line of credit agreements 1.475 137 -
Net cash provided by financing activities 491,662 498,054 8,644
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 381 33 (406)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 361,024 294,570 (245,478)
Net cash provided by discontinued operations - - 9,643
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 354,058 59,488 295323
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 715,082 $ 354,058 $ 59,488
Supplemental schedule of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 46,899 $ 4139 $ 33014
Non cash activities:
Conversion of convertible subordinated debt $ 92,858 $ 94284 $ -
Common stock issued for intangible asset 3 - 3 - $ (7.950)
BioSphere acquisition of BioSphere Medical:
Liabilities assumed $ - $ — $  (1,493)
Fair value of assets acquired $ - $ - $ 1,493

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

A - Nature of the Business

Sepracor Inc. was incorporated in 1984 to research, develop and
commercialize products for the synthesis, separation and purifica-
tion of pharmaceutical and biopharmaceutical compounds.
Sepracor Inc. is a research-based pharmaceutical company
dedicated to treating and preventing human disease through

the discovery, development, and commercialization of innovative
pharmaceutical compounds, that are directed toward serving
unmet medical needs. Sepracor's drug development program has
yielded an extensive portfolio of pharmaceutical compounds,
including candidates for treatment of respiratory, urology and
central nervous system disorders. Sepracor's corporate headquarters
are located in Marlborough, Massachusetts. Sepracor’s 100% owned
subsidiary, Sepracor Canada Ltd., supplies clinical material to
Sepracor through its manufacturing facility in Windsor, Nova Scotia.
Sepracor's approximately 25% equity investment in BioSphere
Medical Inc. (which was majority owned through July 2, 2001) with
operations in France and the United States, is committed to
pioneering the use of patented and proprietary bioengineered
microspheres as a new class of embolotherapy medical devices.

Sepracor and its subsidiaries are subject to risks common to
companies in the industry including, but not limited to, the safety,
efficacy and successful development and regulatory approval of
product candidates, fluctuations in operating results, protection
of proprietary technology, limited sales and marketing experience,
dependence on third party collaboration agreements and third
party sales efforts, limited manufacturing capacity, risk of product
liability, compliance with government regufations and dependence
on key personnel and collaborative partners.

B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation: Consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of Sepracor and all of its wholly- and majority-
owned subsidiaries. All material intercompany transactions have
been eliminated. Investments in affiliated companies, which are
50% owned or less, and where Sepracor does not exercise control,
are accounted for using the equity method.

The Company accounts for the sale of subsidiary stock in different
manners, depending on the life cycle of the entity. The Company
offsets any gains or losses against additional paid-in capital for
early development stage subsidiaries. For later stage subsidiaries
where the Company sells shares of its subsidiary's stock, the
Company records its gains and losses as other income or expense.
For later stage subsidiaries selling additional shares of the sub-
sidiary's stock, the Company records its gains or losses through
additional paid-in capital.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions in the Preparation of
Financial Statements: The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the following: {1) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,

(2) the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of
the financial statements and (3) the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications in the Preparation of Financial Statements:
All references to share and per-share data for all periods presented
have been adjusted to give effect for the two-for-one stock split

effected in February 2000. Certain prior amounts have been
reclassified to conform with current year presentation.

Translation of Foreign Currencies: The assets and liabilities of
Sepracor's international subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars
using current exchange rates. Statement of operations amounts are
translated at average exchange rates prevailing during the period.
The resulting translation adjustment is recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss). Foreign exchange transaction
gains and losses are inciuded in other income (expense).

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents are highly liquid,
temporary cash investments having original maturity dates of
three months or less.

Short- and Long-Term Investments: Short- and long-term invest-
ments include government securities and corporate commercial
paper, which can be readily purchased or sold using established
markets. Those investments with a maturity of less than one year
are classified as short-term. Short- and long-term investments are
classified as either "available-for-sale” or "held-to-maturity.”
Available-for-sale investments are adjusted to their fair market
value with unrealized gains and losses recorded as a component
of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Realized

gains and losses for securities classified as available-for-sale

are included in earnings and are derived using the specific
identification method for determining the cost of securities sold.
Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at cost plus accrued
amortization, which approximates fair value.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The Company has no significant

off balance sheet concentration of credit risk such as foreign
exchange contracts, option contracts or other foreign hedging
arrangements. The Company maintains the majority of its cash
balances with financial institutions. Financial instruments that
potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
primarily consist of the cash and cash equivalents, short- and
long-term investments and trade accounts receivable. The Company
places its cash, cash equivalents and short-term and long-term
investments with high credit quality financial institutions.

Revenues from significant customers are as follows:

Year Ended December 31: 2001 J 2000 1999
Customer A 17% 16% 15%
Customer B 150 9% 1%
Customer C 17% 3% 16%
Customer D 12% 9% 1%
Customer E — 28% -

Accounts Receivable and Bad Debt: Sepracor's trade receivables in
2001 and 2000 primarily represent amounts due to the Company
from wholesalers, distributors and retailers of its pharmaceutical
product. Sepracor performs orngoing credit evaluations of its
customers and generally does not require collateral. Bad debt
write-offs were not significant in 2001, 2000 and 1999; however,
the Company monitors its receivables closely due to few customers
making up a large portion of the overall revenues.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in,
first-out) or market. When the commercialization of a new
product becomes probable, they are then capitalized. The Company
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writes down its inventory for expiry and probable quality assurance
and quality control issues identified in the manufacturing process.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are stated at
cost. Costs of major additions and betterments are capitalized;
maintenance and repairs, which do not improve or extend the life
of the respective assets are charged to operations. On disposal, the
related cost and accumulated depreciation or amortization are
removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
included in the results of operations. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. All laboratory, manufacturing and office equipment
have estimated useful lives of three to ten years. The building has
an estimated useful life of thirty years. Leasehold improvements
are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the
improvements or the remaining term of the lease. The Company has
determined that in substance, under EITF 97-10, it is the owner of
the building asset under construction and therefore has capitalized
construction costs as construction in progress on the balance sheet.

Patents, intangible Assets and Qther Assets: Sepracor capitalizes
significant costs associated with the filing of a patent application.
Patent costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives, not

to exceed 17 years. Deferred finance costs relating to expenses
incurred to complete convertible subordinated debt offerings

are amortized over five to seven years, the term of the debt.
Capitalized license fees are amortized over the expected life of the
licenses. Accumulated amortization was $6,849,000 and $6,317,000
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Long-lived assets are
reviewed for impairment by comparing the undiscounted projected
cash flows of the related assets with their carrying amount. Any
write-downs are treated as permanent reductions in the carrying
amount of the assets.

The Company currently has long-lived assets relating to patents on
drugs in late stages of clinical development but not yet approved.
If these drugs fail to receive final FDA approval the Company could
potentially have material write-downs of assets.

Revenue Recognition: Sepracor recognizes revenue from product
sales when title to product and associated risk of loss has passed to
the customer, and collectability is reasonably assured. All revenues
from product sales are recorded net of applicable allowances for
returns, rebates, and other applicable discounts and allowances.

Sepracor receives royalties related to the manufacture, sale or use
of products or technologies under license arrangements with third
parties. For those arrangements where royalties are reasonably
estimable, Sepracor recognizes revenue based on estimates of
royalties earned during the applicable period and adjusts for differ-
ences between the estimated and actual royalties in the following
quarter. Historically, these adjustments have not been material. For
those arrangements where royalties are not reasonably estimable,
Sepracor recognizes revenue upon receipt of royalty statements
from the licensee.

License fees and other revenue include non-refundable upfront
license fees, milestanes, and other revenues. Non-refundable
upfront license fees are recorded as revenue over the related
performance period or at such time when there are no remaining
performance obligations. Milestones are recorded as revenue
when achieved and only if there are no remaining performance

obligations and the fees are non-refundable. Other revenue
includes revenues recognized by BioSphere unrelated to its core
EmboSphere Microsphere business.

Sepracor recards collaborative research and development revenue
from research and development contracts over the term of the
applicable contract, as it incurs costs related to the contract.

Rebate and Return Reserves: Certain product sales qualify for
rebates from standard list pricing due to government sponsored
programs or other contractual agreements. The Company also
allows for return of its product for up to one year after product
expiration. Reserves for product returns and rebates are derived
through an analysis of historical experience updated for changes
in facts and circumstances as appropriate and by utilizing reports
obtained from external, independent sources. If government con-
tracts change materially, the associated reserves estimated for
those programs can change significantly. Estimates of reserves for
returns are impacted by the extended return cycle, and by other
factors such as introduction of a new competitive product, or
other change in market conditions leading to a change in historical
return patterns.

Research and Development: All costs associated with internal
research and development, research and development conducted
for others and research and development services for which the
Company has been contracted are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes: The Company recognizes deferred tax liabilities and
assets for the expected future tax consequences of events that have
been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this
method, deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based on
the difference between the financial statement and tax basis of
assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year

in which the differences are expected to reverse.

Derivatives: In June 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
("SFAS") No. 138, "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments
and Certain Hedging Activities” - An Amendment to "FASB
Statement No. 133." This statement establishes accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts (collectively referred to as “derivatives”) and for hedging
activities. The statement requires companies to recognize all deriva-
tives as either assets or liabilities, with the instruments measured at
fair value. The accounting for changes in fair value, and resulting
gains or losses, depends on the intended use of the derivative and
its resulting designation. The Company adopted this new account-
ing standard effective January 1, 2001, and the impact of adoption
was not material.

Comprehensive income (Loss): Comprehensive income (loss)
consists of net income (loss) and other comprehensive income
{loss), which includes foreign currency translation adjustments and
unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale investments.

Basic and Diluted Net Loss Per Common Share: Basic earnings
(loss) per share ("EPS") excludes dilution and is computed by
dividing income available to common shareholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the
period. Diluted EPS is based upon the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding during the period plus the additional
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weighted average common equivalent shares during the period.
Common equivalent shares are not included in the per share calcu-
lations where the effect of their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.
Common equivalent shares result from the assumed conversion of
preferred stock, convertible subordinated debt and the assumed
exercises of outstanding stock options, the proceeds of which are
then assumed to have been used to repurchase outstanding stock
options using the treasury stock method.

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, basic

and diluted net loss per common share is computed based on

the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the period because the effect of common stock equivalents
would be anti-dilutive. Certain securities were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 because they would have

an anti-dilutive effect due to net losses for such periods. These
securities include the following:

Options to purchase shares of common stock:

{in thousands, except

price per share data] 2001 2000 1999
Number of options 11,915 9,757 10,940
Price range

per share  $2.50 to $125.44 | $2.50 to $125.44 $0.75 to $59.13

Shares of common stock reserved for issuance upon conversion of
convertible subordinated debt:

{in thousonds) 2001 2000 1999
6.25% Convertible Subordinated
Debentures due 2005 - 3,921 8,000

7% Convertible Subordinated

Debentures due 2005 4,804 4,804 4,805
506 Convertible Subordinated
Debentures due 2007 4,979 4979 -
5.75% Convertible Subordinated
Notes due 2006 8,333 — —
18,116 13,704 12,805

Other: In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or
FASB, issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS
No. 141, "Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwil! and
Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that all business
combinations be accounted for under the purchase method and
that certain acquired intangible assets in a business combination
be recognized as assets apart from goodwill. SFAS No. 142 requires
that ratable amortization of goodwill and certain intangible assets
be replaced with periodic tests of the goodwill's impairment and
that intangible assets be amortized over their useful lives. SFAS
No. 141 is effective for all business combinations initiated after
June 30, 2001 and for all business combinations accounted for by
the purchase method for which the date of acquisition is after
June 30, 2001. The provisions of SFAS No. 142 will be effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and will thus be
adopted by us in fiscal year 2002. However, for goodwill and
intangible assets acquired after June 30, 2001, certain provisions
of SFAS No. 142 will be effective from the date of acquisition. The
Company notes that SFAS No. 141 does nat currently have any

effect on the reported financial results and does not expect the
adoption of SFAS No. 142 to have a material impact on the
Company's financial statements and related disclosures.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for

Asset Retirement Obligations.” This statement addresses financial
accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset
retirement costs. This statement applies to all entities. it applies to
legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets
that result from the acquisition, construction, development andfor
the normal operation of a long-lived asset, except for certain oblig-
ations of lessees. This statement is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002.
The Company does not believe that the adoption of this standard
will have a material impact on the Company's financial statements
and related disclosures.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," which supercedes
SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of." SFAS No. 144 further
refines the requirements of SFAS No. 121 that companies (1) recog-
nize an impairment foss only if the carrying amount of a long-lived
asset is not recoverable based on its undiscounted future cash

flows and (2) measure an impairment loss as the difference between
the carrying amount and fair value of the asset. In addition, SFAS
No. 144 provides guidance on accounting and disclosure issues
surrounding long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale. The Company
will adopt SFAS No. 144 during the first quarter of 2002 and does
not believe that the adoption of this standard will have a material
impact on the Company's financial statements and related disclosures.

C - Sepracor Investments in Affiliates
Investment in BioSphere: BioSphere was a consolidated subsidiary
of Sepracor from 1994 through July 2, 2001.

In May 1999, BioSphere sold a substantial portion of its business
and assets to complete a transition from a chromatography and
media company to a medical device company. (See Note | —
Discontinued Operations)

In February 2000, BioSphere completed a private placement of
approximately $5,900,000 of BioSphere common stock and warrants.
investors purchased 653,887 shares of BioSphere common stock and
warrants to purchase 163,468 shares of BioSphere common stock.
The transaction resulted in Sepracor recording a net gain of approxi-
mately $2,771,000 through additional paid-in capital.

in July 2000, BioSphere sold approximately $13,000,000 of its
common stock in a private equity placement of its common stock.
Sepracor purchased approximately $5,000,000 of BioSphere common
stock in this transaction. The transaction resulted in Sepracor record-
ing a net gain of approximately $1,702,000 through additionat
paid-in capital.

In July 2001, Sepracor sold 2,000,000 shares of BioSphere common
stock held by it in a public offering in which BioSphere also sold
2,000,000 shares of its common stock at a price to the public of
$11.00 per share. On August 2, 2001, the underwriters exercised
their over-allotment option to purchase an additional 600,000
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shares of BioSphere common stock from Sepracor at a price to

the public of $11.00 per share. Sepracor received net proceeds,
after offering costs, from the sales of approximately $26,526,000
and has recognized a gain of approximately $23,034,000 in 2001.
Sepracor recorded approximately $5,590,000 through additional
paid-in capital as its gain on BioSphere's sale of 2,000,000 shares
of BioSphere common stock. As a result of the public offering,
Sepracor's ownership in BioSphere has been reduced from approxi-
mately 55% to 25% as of December 31, 2001. Sepracor no longer
consolidates the results of BioSphere and now records its invest-
ment in BioSphere under the equity method, effective July 3, 2001.
Sepracor has recorded $1,601,000 as its share of BioSphere losses
for the period ended December 31, 2001.

Investment in HMSR, inc (formerly HemaSure, inc): HemaSure
has been an equity investment of Sepracor since 1995. In February
1999, the Company entered into an agreement with HemaSure
pursuant to which Sepracor invested $2,000,000 in exchange for
1,333,334 shares of HemaSure common stock and warrants to
purchase approximately 667,000 of additional shares of HemaSure
common stock. In October 1999, HemaSure completed a private
placement financing which resulted in Sepracor recording a gain
of $820,000, which was recorded through additional paid-in
capital. At December 31, 1999, Sepracor's ownership of HemaSure
was approximately 27%.

In March 2000, HemaSure sold 3,730,000 shares of common stock
in a private placement, thereby reducing Sepracor ownership to
approximately 22%. Sepracor recorded a gain of approximately
$1,417,000 through additional paid-in capital as a result of the
transaction. Sepracor accounts for its investment in HemaSure
using the equity method of accounting. At December 31, 2001
and 2000, Sepracor's ownership in HemaSure was approximately
23% and 22%, respectively and its investment in HemaSure was
recorded at zero.

In February 2001, HemaSure signed an asset purchase agreement
with Whatman plc. Under the terms of the agreement, Whatman
agreed to purchase HemaSure's assets, except for cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities of HemaSure, subject to
certain exceptions as defined in the agreement. On May 29, 2001,
HemaSure completed the sale to Whatman Bioscience Inc., a
Massachusetts corporation and a subsidiary of Whatman plc.
Following the sale, HemaSure changed its corporate name to
HMSR, Inc.

In November 2001, HMSR, Inc. announced that it had signed a
definitive agreement to merge with Point Therapeutics, Inc.
Following the merger, HMSR's current stockholders will own
approximately 23% of the combined company.

Investment in Versicor: Versicor, established as a subsidiary of
Sepracor in 1995, completed various private equity transactions

in April 1999, including the issuance of preferred stock, which
reduced Sepracor's ownership in Versicor to approximately 18%.
As a result of these transactions, Sepracor recorded a gain of
$1,077,000, which was recorded through additional paid-in capital
and began accounting for its investment in Versicor under the cost
method. In October 1999, Versicor completed a private placement
financing for approximately $40,000,000 in which Sepracor paid
$1.,000,000 to Versicor for Versicor preferred stock. As a result of

this transaction, Sepracor's ownership of Versicor was approximately
10% at December 31, 1999. In August 2000, Versicor completed an
initial public offering of 5,290,000 shares of its common stock.
Since Versicor's stock is now publicly traded, Sepracor considers its
investment in Versicor as an available-for-sale security and as such
Sepracor marks-to-market its investment at the end of each
reporting period. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the market
price of Versicor's common stock was $20.25 and $8.625 per

share, respectively, which resulted in the recording of unrealized
gains of approximately $22,889,000 and $10,688,000, as a separate
component of stockholders' equity as of December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

As of December 31, 2001, Sepracor owns 1,809,143 shares, or
approximately 8%, of Versicor's outstanding common stock.
Sepracor also has warrants to purchase an additional 76,250
shares of Versicor common stock at $5.00 per share, which expire
in December 2002. Sepracor recognized $1,252,000 as other
income in 2001 for changes in the valuation of the warrants at
December 31, 2001.

D - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term and Long-term
Investments

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term and long-term investments
consist of the following at December 31:

{in thousands) 2001 2000
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and money market funds $ 637010 % 41,321
Corporate and Government
commercial paper 78,072 312,737
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 715082 | $ 354,058

Short- and long-term investments classified as available-for-sale
or held-to-maturity consist of the following at December 31:

2001 2000
Available- Held-To-|Available- Held-To-
{in thousands) For-Sale  Maturity | For-Sale Maturity
Due within 1 year
Corporate
commercial paper $ — $116,063 | $ 5069 $243,749
Due in greater than 1 year
Corporate
commercial paper 27,678 45566 | 26,641 4,962
Total short-term
and long-term
investments $ 27,678 $161,629 | $31,710 $ 248,71

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities at December 31,
2001 and 2000 were approximately $23,000 and $60,000,
respectively. Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at cost plus
accrued amortization, which approximates fair value. Realized
gains and losses on available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
securities were insignificant in 2001 and 2000.

The Company also has an investment in Versicor, which it began
classifying as an available-for-sale security in August 2000, upon
Versicor's initial public offering. The Company has marked to

market its investment in Versicor at December 31, 2001 and has
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recorded an unrealized gain of approximately $22,889,000, which
is included as a separate component of stockholders' equity.

E ~ Financial instruments
Financial instruments consist of the following at December 31:

2001 | 2000
Carrying FairrCarrying Fair
{in thousands) Amount Value | Amount Value
6.25% Convertible
Subordinated
Debentures -
due 2005 $ -3 —1% 92,858 § 317,054

7% Convertible
Subordinated
Debentures -
due 2005

5% Convertible
Subordinated
Debentures -
due 2007 $ 460,000 $ 399,050|$460,000 $ 481,160

5.75% Convertible
Subordinated
Notes -

due 2006

$ 299,960 $ 313,188|$299,960 $ 424,263

$ 500,000 $ 545200(% -5 -

$1,259,960 $1,257,438/$852,818 $1,222,477

The fair value of all the convertible subordinated debt is from a
quoted market source.

F ~ Accounts Receivable

Sepracor’s trade receivables in 2001 and 2000 primarily represent
amounts due to the Company from wholesalers, distributors and
retailers of its pharmaceutical product. Sepracor performs ongaing
credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require
collateral. The allowance for doubtful accounts and payment

term discounts related to accounts receivable was $585,000 and
$378,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Customers with amounts due to the Company that represent
greater than 10% of the accounts receivable balance are as follows:

H - Property and Equipment and Patents, intangible and
Other Assets
Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31:

(in thousands) 2001 2000
Land $ 85(% 85
Building 2,586 2,967
Laboratory and manufacturing equipment 17,884 15,812
Office equipment 18,986 | 15349
Leasehold improvements 5179 5,239
44,720 39,452
Accumulated depreciation and amortization  (22,047) | (16,950)
22,673 22,502
Construction in progress - Building " 18,672 -
Construction in progress -
Software and Computers 2,501 174
$43,846 | $22676

Depreciation expense was $6,246,000, $5,139,000 and $4,487,000
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

{1) The Company has signed a lease to occupy a new building,
which is being constructed. The lease has a term of 15 years,
and will begin on the occupancy date contingent upon
the completion of the building, expected to be June 2002.
Sepracor is financing the construction of the building thraugh
two interest bearing, secured loans totaling up to approxi-
mately $27,000,000, to be loaned by Sepracor to the developer
of the site. Sepracor will have first right to purchase the
entire property from the developer beginning in June 2002
and extending through January 2004. At December 31, 2001,
Sepracor has incurred $18,672,000 of building costs, which
have been capitalized as construction in progress on the
balance sheet in accordance with EITF 97-10.

Patents, intangible assets and other assets, net consist of the
following at December 31:

Year Ended December 31, 2001 | 2000
Customer A 30% 24%
Customer B 18%0 1%
Customer C 9% 1%

G ~ Inventories
inventories consist of the following at December 31:

{in thousands) 2001 2000
Raw materials $ 1,231 | § 2322
Work in progress 103 432
Finished goods 8,439 3,244

$ 9773 | § 5998

{in thousands) 2001 2000
Deferred finance costs, net $30,087 | $20,734
Intangible assets and patents, net 29,504 31,789
Other assets 788 1,568

$60,379 | $54,09

(1) The 2001 balance includes $14,500,000 of costs associated
with the $500,000,000 in principal amount of 5.75% convert-
ible subordinated notes due 2006, issued in 2001, The 2001
and 2000 balance includes $14,033,000 of costs associated
with the $460,000,000 in principal amount of 5% convertible
subordinated debentures due 2007, issued in 2000.

| ~ Discontinued Operations

On May 17, 1999, BioSphere sold substantially all of its assets

and business, other than such assets and business relating to intra-
corporeal and on-line extracorporeal therapies or any autologous
treatment, for approximately $11,000,000 in cash, and the
assumption of certain fiabilities. Upon the consummation of the
sale, BioSepra Inc. changed its name to BioSphere Medical, inc.
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BioSphere utilized a portion of the proceeds to pay approximately
$880,000 of transaction costs, to repay approximately $2,000,000
of outstanding bank debt, and to repay approximately $143,000
due to Sepracor.

The net assets included in the sale had a net book value of
approximately $10,500,000 on May 17, 1999, which was included
in calculating a net toss for the sale of approximately $70,000.

The operations, assets and liabilities of the business have been
presented in accordance with Accounting Principles Board (APB}
Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of Operations—Reporting
the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of o Business, and Extroordi-
nary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions
in the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, the
operating results of the discontinued business for the year ended
December 31, 1999 have been segregated from the continuing
operations and reported as a separate line item on wne consoli-
dated statements of operations.

J = Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31:

{in thousands) 2001 2000
Research and development costs $41,321 | $31,114
Sales and marketing costs 25,465 7115
Interest on convertible subordinated debt 13,030 11,616

11,678 9,707
11,104 6,008

$102,598 | $65,560

Compensation costs
Other

K - Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt
Notes payable and long-term debt consist of the following at
December 31:

(in thousands) 2001 2000
Government grant from Nova Scotia

Department of Economic Development $ 779 | $ 830
Loan from Atlantic Canada Opportunities

Agency, non-interest bearing, repayable

in 60 equal installments commencing

March 15, 1998 78 150
French Franc bank loan bearing interest at

5.400 payable in monthly instaliments

through March 2005, secured by certain

assets of BioSphere - 124
Obligations under capital leases (See Note M) 1,203 138

2,080 1.242

Less current portion (624) (144)
Total $1.436 | $1,098

Sepracor's wholly-owned subsidiary, Sepracor Canada Limited,

has an interest free credit agreement with a Canadian pravincial
business development agency for approximately $370,000 in term
debt. At December 31, 2001, Sepracor Canada Limited had received

approximately $370,000 of such term debt, of which approximately
$78,000 remains outstanding. Sepracor Canada Limited also has a
Canadian Government grant which may be repayable if Sepracor
Canada Limited fails to meet certain conditions. The grant is
recorded as debt and is being amortized over the useful lives of
the related capital assets. The unamortized balance as of

December 31, 2001 was approximately $779,000.

In December 2001, Sepracor amended its revolving credit agree-
ment {the “Revolving Credit Agreement”} with a commercial bank
to remove BioSphere as a party to the Revolving Credit Agreement
and extend the term to March 31, 2002. The Revolving Credit
Agreement provides for borrowing of up to $25,000,000. Interest is
payable monthly in arrears at prime (4.75% at December 31, 2001)
or the LIBOR rate {1.9% at December 31, 2001) plus .75%. Ali
borrowings are coliateralized by certain assets of the Company.
The Revolving Credit Agreement contains covenants relating to
minimum tangible capital base, minimum cash or cash equivalents,
minimum liquidity ratio and maximum leverage. At December 31,
2001 and 2000, there was $0 outstanding under this agreement.

Minimum annual principal repayment of notes payable and long-
term debt, excluding capital leases is as follows: 2002—%$67,000,
2003—%11,000, none thereafter.

L - Convertible Subordinated Debt

In February 1998, Sepracor issued $189,475,000 in principal
amount of 6.25% convertible subordinated debentures due 2005
(the "6.25% Debentures"). The 6.25% Debentures were convertible
into Sepracor Common Stock, at the option of the hoider, at a
price of $23.685 per share and bore interest at 6.25% payable
semi-annually, commencing on August 15, 1998. The 6.25%
Debentures were redeemable by the Company commencing
February 2001. As part of the sale of the 6.25% Debentures,
Sepracor incurred approximately $6,105,000 of offering costs,
which were recorded as other assets and were being amortized
over seven years, the term of the 6.25% Debentures. The net
praceeds to the Company after offering costs were approximately
$183,370,000.

In February 2000, Sepracor converted $96,424,000 in principal
amount of its 6.25% Debentures. Costs related to the conversion
of the 6.25% Debentures, including inducements and other costs
of approximately $7,497,000, were recorded as other expense.

As a resuft of the conversion, Sepracor issued 4,071,176 shares of
Sepracor Common Stock and wrote off approximately $2,373,000
of deferred finance costs against additional paid-in capital.

In January 2001, the Company announced that on February 21,
2001 it would redeem the $92,858,000 in principal amount of
6.25% Debentures that remained outstanding. On February 20,
2001, prior to the redemption, all outstanding 6.25% Debentures
were converted. As a result of the conversion, Sepracor issued
3,920,608 shares of Sepracor Common Stock and wrote off
approximately $1,525,000 of deferred finance costs against
additional paid-in capital.

In December 1998, Sepracor issued $300,000,000 in principal
amount of 7% convertible subordinated debentures due 2005
(the “7% Debentures"”). The 7% Debentures are convertible into
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Sepracor Common Stock, at the option of the holder, at a price of
$62.4375 per share and bear interest at 7% payable semi-annually,
commencing on June 15, 1999. The 7% Debentures were not
redeemable by the Company until December 20, 2001. The
Company may be required to repurchase the 7% Debentures at
the option of the holders if there was a change in control of the
Company. As part of the sale of the 7% Debentures, Sepracor
incurred approximately $9,919,000 of offering costs, which were
recorded as other assets and are being amortized over seven years,
the term of the 7% Debentures. The net proceeds to the Company
after offering costs were approximately $290,081,000.

in February 2000, Sepracor issued $400,000,000 in principal
amount of 5% convertible subordinated debentures due 2007 (the
"50% Debentures”). On March 9, 2000, Sepracor issued an additional
$60,000,000 in principal amount of 5% Debentures pursuant to an
option granted to the initial purchaser of the 5% Debentures. The
5% Debentures are convertible into Sepracor Common Stock, at
the option of the holder, at a price of $92.38 per share and bear
interest at 5% payable semi-annually, commencing on August 15,
2000. The 5% Debentures are redeemable by the Company prior
to February 15, 2003 if the trading price of Sepracor Common
Stock exceeds 150% of the conversion price ($138.57) for 20
trading days in a period of 30 consecutive trading days. The

500 Debentures are redeemable by the Company on or after
February 15, 2003 if the trading price of Sepracor Common Stock
exceeds 120% of the conversion price ($110.86) for 20 trading
days in a period of 30 consecutive trading days. The Company may
be required to repurchase the 5% Debentures at the option of the
holders if there is a change in control of the Company. As part of
the sale of the 5% Debentures, Sepracor incurred approximately
$14,033,000 of offering costs, which were recorded as other assets
and are being amortized over seven years, the term of the 5%
Debentures. The net proceeds to the Company after offering costs
were approximately $445,967,000.

In November 2001, Sepracor issued $400,000,000 in principal
amount of 5.75% convertible subordinated notes due 2006

{the "5.75% Notes"). In December 2001, Sepracor issued an addi-
tional $100,000,000 in principal amount of 5.75% Notes pursuant
to an option granted to the initial purchaser of the 5.75% Notes.
The 5.75% Notes are convertible into Sepracor common stock, at
the option of the holder, at a price of $60.00 per share. The 5.75%
Notes bear interest at 5.75% payable semiannually, commencing
on May 15, 2002. The 5.75% Notes are convertible at the option
of the Company prior to maturity if the closing price of Sepracor
common stack exceeds 145% of the conversion price {$87.00) for
at least 20 out of 30 consecutive trading days ending within five
trading days prior to notice of conversion. The Company may be
required to repurchase the 5.75% Notes at the option of the hold-
ers if there is a change in control of the Company. As part of the
sale of the 5.75% Notes, Sepracor has incurred offering costs of
approximately $13,982,000 and expects to incur total costs of
$14,500,000 which have been recorded as other assets and are
being amortized over five years, which is the term of the 5.75%
Notes. The estimated net proceeds to the Company after offering
costs are expected to be approximately $485,500,000.

M - Commitments and Contingencies
Future minimum lease payments under all noncancelable leases in
effect at December 31, 2001, are as follows (in thousands):

Year Operating Leases | Capital Leases
2002 $ 1,247 $ 579
2003 899 575
2004 832 130
2005 809 -
2006 809 -
Thereafter 404 -
Total minimum lease payments $ 5,000 $1,284
Less amount representing interest — (81
Present value of minimum fease payments $ 5,000 $1,203

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases relate
primarily to Sepracor's principal office, laboratory and production
facilities. Most of the lease terms provide options to extend the
leases and require Sepracor to pay its allocated share of taxes

and operating costs in addition to the annual base rent payments.
Capital leases relate primarily to telephone systems and computer
equipment purchased under capital lease agreements. Rental
expense under these and other leases amounted to $1,384,000,
$1,576,000 and $1,683,000 for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

N - Litigation
Currently, Sepracor is not party to any material legal proceedings.

0 - Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

In July 2001, Sepracor completed the sale of 2,000,000 shares of
BioSphere common stock held by it in a public offering in which
BioSphere also sold 2,000,000 shares of its common stock at a
price to the public of $11.00 per share. On August 2, 2001, the
underwriters exercised their over-allotment option to purchase

an additional 600,000 shares of BioSphere common stock from
Sepracor at a price to the public of $11.00 per share. Sepracor
received net proceeds, after offering costs, from the sales of
approximately $26,526,000 and has recognized a gain of approxi-
mately $23,034,000 in 2001. Sepracor recorded approximately
$5.590,000 through additional paid-in capital as its gain on
BioSphere's sale of 2,000,000 shares of BioSphere common

stock. As a result of the public offering, Sepracor's ownership in
BioSphere has been reduced from approximately 55% to 25% as of
December 31, 2001. Sepracor no longer consolidates BioSphere and
now records its investment in BioSphere under the equity method,
effective July 3, 2001. Sepracor has recorded $1,601,000 as its
share of BioSphere losses for the period ended December 31, 2001.

In January 2001, the Company announced that on February 21,
2001 it would redeem the $92,858,000 in principal amount of
6.25% convertible subordinated debentures due 2005 that remained
outstanding. On February 20, 2001, prior to the redemption, all
outstanding 6.25% Debentures were converted. As a result of the
conversion, 3,920,608 shares of Sepracor Common Stock were
issued and deferred financing costs of approximately $1,525,000
were written off against additional paid-in capital.
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In August 2000, Versicor completed an initial public offering of
5,290,000 shares of its common stock. Since Versicor's stock is now
publiciy traded, Sepracor considers its investment in Versicor as an
available-for-sale security and as such Sepracor marks-to-market its
investment at the end of each reporting period and records the
investment as investment in affiliates on the balance sheet. At
December 31, 2001 and 2000, the market price of Versicor's com-
mon stock was $20.25 and $8.625 per share, respectively, which
resulted in the recording of unrealized gains of approximately
$22,889,000 and $10,688,000, as a separate component of stock-
holders' equity as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Sepracor's ownership in Versicor at December 31, 2001 and 2000
was approximately 8%.

In July 2000, BioSphere completed the sale of approximately
$13,000,000 of its common stock in a private equity placement.
Of this amount, Sepracor purchased approximately $5,000,000
of BioSphere common stock. As a result of the transaction,
Sepracor recorded a net gain of approximately $1,702,000
through additional paid-in capital.

In May 2000, the stockholders of Sepracor approved an amendment
to Sepracor's Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended,
increasing from 140,000,000 to 240,000,000 the number of
authorized shares of common stock.

* In March 2000, HemaSure completed a $28,000,000 private

placement of common stock, consisting of 3,730,000 shares of
HemaSure common stock. The transaction resulted in Sepracor
recording a gain of approximately $1,417,000 through additional
paid-in capital.

In February 2000, BioSphere completed a private placement of
approximately $5,900,000 of BioSphere common stock and war-
rants. Investors purchased 653,887 shares of BioSphere common
stock and warrants to purchase 163,468 shares of BioSphere com-
mon stock. The transaction resulted in Sepracor recording a net gain
of approximately $2,771,000 through additiona} paid-in capital.

In January 2000, Sepracor’s Board of Directors approved a two-
for-one stock spfit. The stock split was effected in the form of a
100% stock dividend on February 25, 2000, to stockholders of

record on February 1, 2000. All share data and stock prices have
been adjusted to reflect the stock split for all periods presented.

In August 1999, Sepracor paid Georgetown University $10,000,000
in cash and issued 200,000 shares of Sepracor Common Stock

to obtain all rights, title and interest held by Georgetown relating
to terfenadine carboxylate, norastemizole (tecastemizole),
intraconazole enantiomers and ketoconazole enantiomers. The
inteliectual property rights purchased from Georgetown are being
amortized over a ten-year period.

Sepracor has recorded unearned compensation expense related
to stock options granted to certain consultants. Table A summa-
rizes the unearned compensation activity for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Table A

Unearned Compensation: {in thousands] 2001 2000 1999
Balance at January 1, $(189) | $(217) $(144)
Stock option grants - (40)  (129)
Amortization expense 69 68 56

Balance at December 31, $(120) | $(189) ${217)

P - Stock Plans

The Company has stock-based compensation plans, which are
described below. The Company records the issuance of stock
options using APB Opinion 25 and related interpretations in
accounting for its plans. However, if compensation cost for the
Company's stock-based compensation plans had been determined
based on the fair value at the grant dates, the Company's net loss
and basic and diluted loss per share for the years ended December
31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 would have been increased to the pro
forma amounts indicated in Table B.

The fair value of each stock option is estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions:

ZOOU 2000 1999
Expected option life 6 years 6.70 years 5.66 years
Expected volatility 75% 70% 55%
Risk-free interest rate 4.88% 6.28% 5.81%
Dividends None None None

The 1991 Restated Stock Option Plan (the “1991 Plan”) provides
for the granting of Incentive Stock Options ("150s") to officers
and key employees of Sepracor and nonstatutory stock options
(“NSOs") to officers, employees, consultants and directors of
Sepracor. 1S0s and NSOs granted under the Plan have a maximum
term of ten years from the date of grant and have an exercise
price not less than the fair value of the stock on the date of grant
and vest generally over five years. In 1999, the stockholders
approved an amendment to the 1991 Plan increasing the number
of shares of Common Stock, which may be granted to 18,000,000.
In 2001, the 1991 Plan expired.

Table B
2001 2000 1999
Net Basic and Diluted Net Basic and Diluted Net Basic and Diluted
{in thousands, except loss per share amounts) Loss™ Loss Per Share Loss®™ Loss Per Share Loss™ Loss Per Share
As reported $(224,015) $(2.89) $(204,017) $(2.80) $(183,059) $(2.77)
Pro forma $(280,761) $(3.62) $(247,187) $(3.40) $(213,279) $(3.23)

(1) Net loss represents net loss applicable to common shares.
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The 1991 Directors Stock Option Plan (the "1991 Directors Plan”)
provides for the granting of NSOs to directors of Sepracor who are
not officers or employees of Sepracor. The options granted under
the 1991 Directors Plan have a maximum term of ten years from
date of grant and have an exercise price of not less than the fair
market value of the stock on the date of grant and vest over five
years. In May 1998, the stockholders approved an amendment to
the 1991 Directors Plan increasing the number of shares of
Common Stock, which may be granted to 1,000,000. in 2001,

the 1999 Directors Plan expired.

The 1997 Stock Option Plan (the “1997 Plan") permits the
Company to grant ISOs and NSOs to purchase up to 1,000,000
shares of Common Stock to employees and consultants of the
Company. Executive officers are not entitled to receive stock
options under the 1997 Plan. ISOs and NSOs granted under the
1997 Plan have a maximum term of ten years from the date of
grant and generally vest over five years. 1SOs may not be granted
at an exercise price less than fair market value.

The 1999 Director Stock Option Plan (the “1999 Director Plan")
permits the Company to grant NSOs to purchase 1,800,000 shares
of Common Stock to non-employee directors of the Company.
Options granted under the 1999 Director Plan have a maximum
term of ten years from the date of grant and have an exercise

price not less than the fair value of the stock on the date of grant
and vest over a period of one to five years.

The 2000 Stock Option Plan (the 2000 Plan") permits the
Company to grant I1SOs, NSOs and restricted stock awards to pur-~
chase 2,500,000 shares of Common Stock to employees, officers,
directors and consulitants of the Company. Stock options granted
under the 2000 Plan have a2 maximum term of ten years from the
date of grant, have an exercise price not less than the fair value of
the stock on the grant date and generally vest over five years.

The 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "1996 ESPP") permits
an aggregate of 240,000 shares of Common Stock to be purchased
by employees at 85% of market value on the first or last day of
each six month offering period, whichever is lower, through accu-
mulation of payroll deductions ranging from 1% to 10% of
compensation as defined, subject to certain limitations. Employees
purchased approximately 59,000, 33,000 and 48,000 shares for a
total of $1,666,000, $1,701,000 and $1,284,000, during the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. At
December 31, 2001, there were no shares of Common Stock
authorized for future issuance under the 1996 ESPP.

The 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “1938 ESPP"] permits
an aggregate of 600,000 shares of Common Stock to be purchased
by employees at 85% of market value on the first or last day of

The following tables summarize information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001

(in thousands, except for per share amounts and contractual life):

Options Qutstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Range of Exercise Number of Remaining Average Number of Average
Price Options Contractual Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Per Share Outstanding Life (Years) Per Share Exercisable Per Share
$ 250- 856 1,253 39 $ 664 1,239 $ 6.65
11.25- 19.00 2,313 6.1 16.14 1,331 16.28
20.00 - 28.01 1,872 8.2 23.83 500 2274
3113 - 39.06 2,300 8.2 35.18 554 35635
4159 - 4852 1,224 79 4492 447 43.61
5050 - 59.13 1,526 7.7 57.76 356 58.47
7188 - 73.88 303 8.8 72.19 61 72.19
87.31 - 87.50 861 8.3 87.34 159 87.45
92.25- 9225 142 82 92.25 28 92.25
125.44 - 12544 121 8.6 125.44 24 125.44
$ 250-12544 11,915 73 $ 36.89 4,699 $ 26.61
2001 2000 1999
Average Average Average
Number Price Per Number Price Per Number Price Per
of Options Share of Options Share of Options Share
Balance at January 1 9,757 $ 37.05 10,940 $ 25.37 9,870 $ 14.65
Granted 2,687 34.91 1,534 88.90 3,251 47.16
Exercised (238) 12.99 (2,235) 14.37 (1,920) 6.1
Cancelled (252) 50.35 (482) 30.10 (261) 33.99
Expired (39) 48.52 — - ~ -
Balance at December 31 11,915 $ 36.89 9,757 $ 37.05 10,940 $ 2537
Options exercisable at December 31 4,699 2,576 2,275
Weighted-average fair value of
options granted during the year $24.77 $ 63.28 $ 28.86

There were 2,128,000 options available for future grant as of December 31, 2001.
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each six month offering period, whichever is lower, through
accumulation of payroll deductions ranging from 1% to 10% of
compensation as defined, subject to certain limitations. Employees
purchased approximately 12,000 shares for a total of $350,000,
during the year ended December 31, 2001. At December 31, 2001,
there were 588,000 shares of Common Stock authorized for future
issuance under the 1998 ESPP,

Q - Income Taxes

Sepracor's statutory and effective tax rates were 34% and 0%,
respectively, for the years 2001, 2000 and 1999. The effective

tax rate was 0% due to net operating losses ("NOL") and non-
recognition of any deferred tax asset.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated
future tax consequences attributable to tax benefit carryforwards
and to differences between the financial statement amounts of
assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates. A valu-
ation reserve is established if it is more likely than not that all or a
portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. Accordingly,
a valuation reserve has been established for the full amount of the
deferred tax asset. Of the total valuation allowance, approximately
$60,600,000 relates to stock option compensation deductions, The
tax benefit associated with the stock option compensation deduc-
tions will be credited to equity when realized.

At December 31, 2001, Sepracor had federal and state tax NOL
carryforwards of approximately $693,000,000 and $558,000,000,
which will expire through 2021 and 2008, respectively. Based upon
the Internal Revenue Code and changes in Company ownership,
utilization of the NOL may be subject to an annual limitation.
Sepracor also has an NOL from its operation in Canada of approxi-
mately $2,700,000, which may be carried forward indefinitely.

At December 31, 2001, Sepracor had federal and state research
and experimentation credit carryforwards of approximately
$27,000,000 and $21,000,000, respectively, which will expire
through 2021 and 20186, respectively. Sepracor also had Canadian
research and experimentation credits of $2,000,000, which begin
to expire in 2004,

The components of Sepracor's net deferred taxes were as follows
at December 31:

(in thousands) 2001 2000
Assets
NOL carryforwards $ 289979 $ 277432
Reserves 7,730 4,382
Tax credit carryforward 50,118 35,225
Patent (2,470) 926
Accrued expenses 36,535 16,562
Research and development
capitalization 56,361 15,461
Intangibles 2,595 2,915
Property and equipment 1,225 742
Other 1,413 1,437
Liabilities
Basis difference of subsidiaries (5,856) 3,781)
Valuation allowance (437.531) (351,301)

Net deferred taxes $ - $ -

R - Agreements

Revenue-related agreements

Tecastemizole. Effective January 1998, Sepracor and Janssen
Pharmaceutica, N.V., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Johnson &
Johnson (*Janssen”), entered into an agreement (the
“Tecastemizole Agreement”; formerly referred to as the
“Norastemizole Agreement”), relating to the development and
marketing of tecastemizole (formerly norastemizole}, a third
generation nonsedating antihistamine. Under the terms of the
Tecastemizole Agreement, the companies agreed to jointly fund
the deveiopment of tecastemizole, and Sepracor granted to
Janssen an option to acquire certain rights regarding the product
in the United States and abroad. In May 1999, Sepracor
announced that Johnson & Johnson elected not to exercise its
option to co-promote tecastemizole under the Tecastemizole
Agreement. Sepracor continued to fund clinical development
and marketing of the drug and submitted a NDA to the FDA for
SOLTARA brand tecastemizole in March 2001. Under the terms
of the Tecastemizole Agreement, Sepracor has worldwide rights
to make, use, and sell prescription tecastemizole products under
all Johnson & Johnson intellectual property rights relating to
tecastemizole, including the right to reference Johnson &
Johnson's data for astemizole, in exchange for royalty payments
on sales of tecastemizaole. Sepracor anticipates selling SOLTARA, if
approved, through its own expanded sales force.

Fexofenadine. In September 1999, Hoechst Marion Roussel Inc.
(now Aventis) and Sepracor settled patent issues with respect to
fexofenadine, marketed by Aventis as ALLEGRA®, and amended
their existing agreement {as so amended, the “Aventis
Fexofenadine Agreement"). Under the terms of the U.S. Aventis
Fexofenadine Agreement, Aventis received all rights to Sepracor's
patents with respect to fexofenadine and obtained an exclusive
license to various Sepracor U.S. patent applications related to
fexofenadine. In October 1999, upon effectiveness of the amended
Aventis Fexofenadine Agreement, Sepracor recognized license fee
revenue of $1,875,000 from a milestone payment that had been
previously deferred. Sepracor has earned royalties on fexofenadine
sales in the United States since February 2001. Under the terms
of a separate ex-U.S. Aventis Fexofenadine Agreement, Aventis
obtained an exclusive license to Sepracor's patents related to
fexofenadine, that had been the subject of litigation in Europe,
as well as various other patent oppositions between the two
companies outside the United States. Sepracor has been entitled
to royalties on fexofenadine product sales since March 1, 1999 in
countries where Sepracor has patents related to fexofenadine. The
Company recorded $25,379,000, $2,495,000 and $1,746,000 of
rayalty revenues under the Aventis Fexofenadine Agreement in
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Levocetirizine. In June 1999, Sepracor entered into a licensing
agreement with UCB Farchim SA, an affiliate of UCB (“UCB"),
relating to levocetirizine, an isomer of cetirizine, which is mar-
keted by UCB as ZYRTEC® (the “UCB Agreement”). Under the terms
of the UCB Agreement, Sepracar has exclusively licensed to UCB
all of Sepracor's issued patents and pending patent applications
relating to levocetirizine in all countries, except the United States
and Japan. Sepracor is entitled to receive royalties under the UCB
Agreement upon first product sales and royalties will escalate
upon achievement of sales volume milestones. In September 2001,
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UCB announced that European Union Member States granted a
positive opinion for levocetirizine, a single isomer of ZYRTEC®, for
the treatment of symptoms of seasonal allergic rhinitis (SAR),
perennial allergic rhinitis (PAR) and chronic idiopathic urticaria
(CIU}, or hives of unknown cause, in adults and children aged 6
years and older. UCB has marketed levocetirizine under the brand
names XUSAL™ and XYZAL® in Germany since February 2001, and
in 4 other European countries during the fourth quarter of 2001.
UCB has received regulatory approval in 9 other countries where
Sepracor expects to earn royalties upon launch in 2002.

Desloratadine. In December 1997, Sepracor licensed to Schering
Plough Corporation ("Schering”) exclusive worldwide rights to
Sepracor's patents covering desloratadine {the "DCL Agreement"),
an active metabolite of loratadine, which is used as an antihista-
mine. In 1998, Schering paid Sepracor an initial license fee of
$5,000,000. Under the terms of the DCL Agreement, Sepracor is
entitled to receive royalties on desloratadine sales, beginning at
product faunch. Royalties will escalate over time upon achievement
of sales volume and other milestones. On January 19, 2001,
Schering received an approvable letter for desloratadine from

the FDA, which indicated that the product could be approved
pending final approval by the FDA. On February 15, 2001, Schering
announced that the FDA had issued reports citing deficiencies con-
cerning Schering's compliance with current Good Manufacturing
Processes, or GMPs, and that the FDA had advised Schering that
GMP deficiencies must be resolved prior to the FDA granting
approval of desloratadine. In December 2001, Schering announced
that CLARINEX® (desloratadine) 5mg Tablets had received market-
ing clearance from the FDA and Schering commercially launched
CLARINEX® in 2002.

Eszopiclone. In October 1999, Sepracor entered into an agreement
with Rhone-Poulenc Rorer SA (now Aventis) under which Sepracor
exclusively licensed Aventis' preclinical, clinical and post-marketing
surveillance data package relating to zopiclone, its isomers and
metabolites, to develop, make, use and sell eszopiclone in the
United States (the “Aventis Eszopiclone Agreement”). Under the
Aventis Eszopiclone Agreement, Aventis assigned all U.S. patent
applications relating to zopiclone to Sepracor, and Aventis
retained the right under the licensed data package to manufacture
(S)-zopiclone in the U.S. for non-U.S. markets. In addition, Sepracor
paid a $5,000,000 license fee to Aventis in 1999 and will pay a
royalty to Aventis on eszopiclone product sales in the US,, if any.
Sepracor recognized expense of $1,000,000 in 2000 based on the
initiation of Phase Il clinical trials of eszopiclone and may be
required to pay additional milestone payments to Aventis.

(R)-Fluoxetine. In December 1998, Sepracor entered into an
agreement with Eli Lilly and Company ("Lilly") under which
Sepracor granted to Lilly exclusive worldwide rights to Sepracor's
patents covering (R)-fluoxetine, a modified form of an active
ingredhient found in fluoxetine, marketed by Lilly as PROZAC®
{the "Lity Agreement”). In April 2000, following completion of the
Federai Trade Commission review of the Lilly Agreement, the
Company received an initial milestone payment and license fee of
$20,000,000, which was recorded as license fee revenue in 2000.
The Company also recorded $3,573,000 of collaborative research
and development revenue in 2000 related to previous costs
incurred in the development of (R)-fluoxetine under the Lilly

Agreement. In October 2000, the Company was notified by Lilly
that Lilly had terminated the exclusive license agreement covering
(R)-fluoxetine. In accordance with the Lilly Agreement, Lilly has
returned the existing scientific data on the project to Sepracor.

Ticalopride. In July 1998, Sepracor entered into a license agreement
with Janssen (the "Ticalopride Agreement”; formerly referred to as
the "Norcisapride Agreement”) giving Janssen exclusive worldwide
rights to Sepracor's patents covering ticalopride, formerly known
as (+)-norcisapride, an isomer of the active metabolite of Janssen's
PROPULSID®. Under the terms of the Ticalopride Agreement,
Sepracor has exclusively licensed to Janssen rights to develop and
market the ticalopride product worldwide. Under the Ticalopride
Agreement, Janssen has agreed to pay Sepracor royalties on
ticalopride sales, if any, beginning at product launch in those
countries where Sepracor has issued patents covering Janssen's
approved indications. Under the terms of the Ticalopride
Agreement, the royalty rate to be paid to Sepracor will escalate
upon the achievement of sales volume milestones. In April 2001,
the Company was notified by Janssen that clinical investigators
were informed that two Phase |l trials to evaluate the efficacy and
safety of ticalopride in subjects with symptoms of GERD, or gastro-
paresis, were being suspended pending further analysis of a small
number of adverse events reported in GERD and diabetic patients.

Other agreements

In January 2001, Sepracor signed a lease to occupy approximately
192,600 square feet of office and research and development space
in a facility to be built in Marlborough, Massachusetts. The lease
has a term of 15 years, and will begin on the occupancy date
contingent upon the completion of the building, expected to

be June 2002. In addition, Sepracor has an option to lease two
additional buildings, totaling approximately 232,400 square feet,
which may be constructed on the same site in the future. Sepracor
is financing the construction of the first building through two
interest bearing, secured loans totaling up to approximately
$27,000,000, to be loaned by Sepracor to the developer of the site.
Sepracor will have first right to purchase the entire property from
the developer beginning in June 2002 and extending through
January 2004. The developer has the right to require Sepracor to
purchase the site based on a contractual amount less the amount of
any loans outstanding from the developer to Sepracor, if Sepracor's
cash and cash equivalents fali below $137,000,000 before substan-
tial completion of the building. At December 31, 2001, Sepracor
has incurred $18,672,000 of building costs, which have been
capitalized as construction in progress on the balance sheet in
accordance with EITF 97-10.

S - Employees’ Savings Plan

Sepracor has a 401(k) savings plan (the "401(k) Plan"} for all
domestic employees. Under the provisions of the 401(k) Plan,
employees may voluntarily contribute up to 15% of their compen-
sation, up to the statutory limit. In addition, Sepracor can make a
matching contribution at its discretion. Sepracor matched 50% of
the first $3,000 contributed by employees up to $1,500 maximum
per employee during 2001, 2000, and 1999. Sepracor incurred
expenses of $575,000, $391,000 and $337,000 in 2001, 2000

and 1999, respectively, as its matching contribution.
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T -~ Business Segment and Geographic Area Information

For "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information” segments represent the Company's internal arganiza-
tion as used by management for making operating decisions

and assessing performance as the source of business segments.
Sepracor operates in one business segment, which is the

discovery, research and development and commercialization of
pharmaceutical products.

Financial information by geographic area is presented below:

Geographic Area Data:

(in thousands) 2001 2000 1999
Revenues

United States:

Unaffiliated customers $152,095 | $ 82550 $ 20,393
Europe:

Unaffiliated customers - 1,290 2,266
Related parties - 1,405 -
Total revenues $152,095 | $ 85245 § 22,659
Long-lived assets:

United States $139.490 | $ 82,567 $ 49,439
Europe - 412 251
Canada 7.824 7.534 6,905
Total long-lived assets $147,314 | $ 90513 $ 56,595

Sepracor had no export sales to the Far East for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999. Revenues are attributed to
geographic locations based on the selling location.

U - Quarterly Consolidated Financial Data (Unaudited)

{in thousands, For the Quarter Ended
except per March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31
share data) 2001 2001 2001 2001

Net revenues $33,940 $44,210 $36,692 $37.253
Gross profit 28,669 40,278 33,464 33,780
Net loss applicable

to common shares (48,030} (37,272) (36,444) (102,269)

Loss per share:

Basic and diluted” $  {63) § [(48) § (477§ (1.31)

(in thousands, For the Quarter Ended

except per March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31
share data) 2000 2000 2000 2000
Net revenues $15,133 $34,252 $11,483 $24,377
Gross profit 10,763 31,121 8,949 20,678
Net loss applicable

to common shares {54,037} (31,308) (45,226) (73,446)
Loss per share:

Basic and diluted™ $ (76) $ (43) $ (62 $ (1.00)

V - Subseguent Events

On January 7, 2002, Sepracor and 3M Drug Delivery Systems
Division announced initiation of a scale-up and manufacturing
collaboration for XOPENEX hydrofluoroalkane (HFA) metered-
dose inhaler (MDI). The collaboration will combine Sepracor's
short-acting beta-agonist, XOPENEX, and 3M's expertise in
manufacturing MDls, the device most commonly used by patients
for the treatment of asthma and chronic obstructive disease, using
HFA technology.

On January 31, 2002, Sepracor announced that the FDA had
approved XOPENEX brand levalbuterol HCI inhalation solution
for the treatment or prevention of bronchospasm in children

6 to 11 years old with reversible obstructive airway disease, such
as asthma. XOPENEX will be marketed for use in a nebulizer at
dosage strengths of 0.31 mg and 0.63 mg for pediatric patients.
XOPENEX inhalation solution has been marketed at dosage
strengths of 0.63 mg and 1.25 mg for patients 12 years of age
and older since May 1999.

On March 7, 2002, the FDA issued a “not approvable” letter for the
NDA filed for SOLTARA™ brand tecastemizole at dosage strengths
of 15 mg and 30 mg for the treatment of allergic rhinitis. A “not
approvable” letter is issued if the FDA believes that the application
contains insufficient information for an approval. The Company
has requested a meeting with the FDA to discuss requirements for
the resolution of the issues identified by the FDA concerning the
NDA, and will assess its plans with respect to development of
SOLTARA after that meeting.

In March 2002, through March 27, 2002, Sepracor exchanged
approximately $97,000,000 of its convertible subordinated debt
in privately negotiated transactions, for approximately 3,541,000
shares of its common stock. The associated inducement costs
charged to other expense in the first quarter of 2002, are
expected to be approximately $41,000,000.
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